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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

\ +
FEHE
Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Kidztech Holdings Limited (the “Company”), it is my pleasure to
present to you the annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “"Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020
("“FY2020").

In light of the global epidemic and political instability across the globe,
the year of 2020 was a year full of collective uncertainty. However, it
was yet another significant year to the Group in terms of growth and
corporate development.

During FY2020, the Group devoted its effort to the preparation for
the listing (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 18 March 2020
(the "“Listing Date"”) and fulfilled the stringent requirements of
the international equity market and successfully enhanced its
management standard through the Listing exercise. The Listing
has laid down an important milestone of the Group’s business
development and is a recognition to our efforts in bringing to the
market the best products ever since our inception. After the Listing,
we continued to strengthen the Group's existing market and have
been seizing on every business opportunity to achieve satisfactory
results.

During FY2020, the coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") epidemic
has impacted the whole world and brought major challenges to our
business environment. After negotiating with our customers, the
Group adjusted its strategies regarding its sales in the Europe and
the United States, aiming to reduce sales in the severely impacted
European and American markets, as well as minimising risks and
further expand its customers bases in other markets to keep our
overall business stable.

Meanwhile, the Group has devoted substantial resources to develop
business relationships with export-oriented wholesalers in China
that have greater bargaining power when conducting business with
different types of overseas retailers. On top of that, we will allocate
more resources to expand our domestic sales with our own “kidztech”
brand.
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In terms of product development, the Groupintends to strengthen
its product development capability to cater for different preferences
and needs of end customers of its products by way of (i) devoting
more resources in market research to enhance its sensitivity to the
latest global trends; (ii) enhancing its engineering and quality control
functions by retaining and employing additional engineers and quality
assurance personnel as well as strengthening quality standards and
procedures; and (iii) deploying further resources in product design
and development.

The Group envisages that its potential growth will require solid
support of enhanced production capacity and diversified products
offering. Therefore, the Group has completed the expansion of its
production plants in China during the year, which helps capitalise on
the growing demand from the market, especially for smart toys and
will boost our sales. The Group will also enrich its products offering,
introduce competitive intellectual properties licensing and maintain its
stable relationship with existing customers.

I, on behalf of the Board, would like to take this opportunity to
express my deep gratitude to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”), customers, business partners and suppliers
for their continuous support. In addition, | would like to express my
sincere gratitude to the management and employees of the Group for
their commitment, contribution and dedication over the years.

Yu Huang
Chairman

25 March 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BB am M AT
BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group has a vision of becoming a smart interactive entertainment
product provider. The Group is principally engaged in the design,
development, manufacture and sale of high-quality smart toy vehicles,
smart interactive toys and traditional toys and the sale of smart
hardware products.

Revenue

The Group's total revenue decreased by approximately 9.2% from
approximately RMB325.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2019 (“FY2019") to approximately RMB295.9 million for FY2020. In
light of the outbreak of COVID-19, there was adjustment in focus
in different major markets by the Company. The Company took the
initiative to reduce its sales to markets in Europe and the United
States of America (the "US") which are places more seriously
affected by COVID-19, resulting in a decrease in the amount and
proportion of revenue attributable to direct sales to such overseas
customers.

The People's Republic of China (the “PRC") continued to be the
Group's biggest market in 2020, contributing approximately 65.6%
of revenue (among which, approximately 47.7% was indirect sales to
overseas made through the export-oriented wholesalers based in the
PRC which principally export and sell toys to overseas wholesalers
and retailers and mainly onward export the Group's products to the
overseas market (the “"PRC Export-Oriented Wholesalers”), while
approximately 17.9% of which was domestic sales made through the
PRC domestic-sale-oriented wholesalers and retail sales in the PRC
market). Europe as a whole contributed approximately 10.8%, the
North America contributed approximately 18.0%, Asia (excluding the
PRC) contributed approximately 3.9% and approximately 1.7% came
from Oceania, South America and Africa.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Analysis of revenue by product type is as follows:

REMPBREDOEEITNT

Year ended 31 December

BE+TZA=+—HLFE

2020 2019
—ECEHE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Smart toys B A
— Smart toy vehicles - R EE 185,762 209,584
— Smart interactive toys - B e InA 27,222 28,459
Traditional toys E5HmA 77531 84,697
Smart hardware BEEMER - 3,060
Anti-epidemic products B A 5,398 —
295,913 325,800
Smart toys Heen A
Smart toy vehicles HEpEE

The Group’s smart toy vehicles mainly comprise full function radio
controlled toy vehicles, which are manufactured in different scales.
During FY2020, the Group’s smart toy vehicles are mostly “kidztech”
brand products and co-branded products collectively released by
the Company and renowned automobile manufacturers. The Group
also manufactures under overseas customers’ brands on original
equipment manufacturing (“OEM") and original design manufacturing
("ODM") bases.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR D

Smart interactive toys

The Group's smart interactive toys mainly comprise smart interactive
playsets, activity toys and musical toys, and some of these toys
which play music and contain play features are intended to stimulate
the sensory development of children. During FY2020, most of these
toys were sold under either (i) co-branded with popular entertainment
characters featured in animated television series or motion pictures or
toy brand owner; or (ii) the “kidztech” brand.

Traditional toys

Traditional toys include traditional toy vehicles, traditional educational
toys, dolls and other traditional toys such as outdoor and sport as
well as infant toys. During FY2020, (i) the majority of revenue from
traditional toys were derived from sale of traditional toy vehicles,
which include pull back toy vehicles and inertia toy vehicles which are
mainly designed for children aged one to three years or above; and {ii)
most of these toys were sold under the “kidztech” brand.

Smart hardware

Leveraging the expertise of the Group in designing and manufacturing
high quality radio controlled smart toy vehicles, the Group had in 2018
commenced selling smart hardware, such as Bluetooth speakers,
which are sold under the “kidztech” brand. As the domestic internet
industry giants all use smart speakers as products to build the
entry of smart home series product chains, they have all launched
new products. They all adopted subsidy policies in order to seize
market share, so prices continued to fall while the competition
remained fierce. As a result, the sales profit margin did not reach the
expectation of the Group, and no sales had been achieved during
FY2020. The Group will continue to seek sales opportunities for other
smart hardware products.

Brands

The Group's smart toys, traditional toy and smart hardware
products are (i) branded with its “kidztech” brand; (ii) co-branded
with renowned automobile manufacturers, popular entertainment
characters featured in animated television series or motion pictures or
toy brand owner; or (iii) branded under its overseas customers brands,
which mainly represent the products manufactured by the Group
on ODM and OEM bases and the products sold to its customers
branded under their respective brands.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During FY2020, (i) approximately 67.1% of revenue was attributable to
products under the “kidztech” brand (FY2019: approximately 46.0%),
(i) approximately 23.6% of revenue was attributable to products
under co-brand (FY2019: approximately 45.3%) and (iii) approximately
9.3% of revenue was attributable to products under overseas
customers brands (FY2019: approximately 8.7 %).

The Group believes that co-branding with other famous brands allows
the Group to leverage on the marketing benefits of the internationally
renowned brands to expediently gain consumer awareness, and
recognition of authenticity, and to establish creditability and market
acceptance from the mass market. The Group has been newly
granted licensed rights of renowned toy and entertainment character
brands in FY 2020 as set out below:

(i) licensed rights of “Pac-Man" for the sale of a series of radio-
controlled toys and slot racing track sets in overseas market
for the period from 1 May 2020 to 30 April 2023 (both days
inclusive); and

(i) licensed rights of “X-Games"” for the sale of radio-controlled
skateboarders in overseas market for the period from 1 July
2021 to 31 December 2022 (both days inclusive).

Anti-epidemic products

Since the outbreak of COVID-19, there has been a shortage of anti-
epidemic products. The Group believes that on the one hand, the
timely development of the anti-epidemic products business allows
the Group to participate in the global anti-epidemic work, and on the
other hand, it allows the Group to take advantage of the continuous
growing domestic and foreign demands which provides the Group
with income diversification and enhances the returns of the
Shareholders. Since late March 2020, the Group has been actively
preparing for the establishment of mask production lines in the PRC
and the sales and trading of anti-epidemic products. In June 2020,
Kidztech Intelligent was verified and confirmed by the Guangdong
Provincial Development and Reform Commission as a Key Anti-
Epidemic Materials Production Enterprise in Guangdong province and
also achieved sales revenue in FY2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased from approximately RMB122.2
million for FY2019 to approximately RMB100.2 million for FY2020,
representing a decrease of approximately 18.0%. The Group's gross
profit margin decreased by approximately 3.7% from approximately
375% in FY2019 to approximately 33.8% in FY2020. Due to the
impact caused by COVID-19, the Group adjusted the focus in different
major markets and took the initiative to reduce sales to markets in
Europe and the US which are more seriously affected by COVID-19,
resulting in a decrease in revenue. The amount and proportion of
revenue attributable to direct sales to overseas customers that have
higher gross profit margin dropped, resulting in a decrease in gross
profit and gross profit margin.

Profit for the year

The Group's net profit decreased by approximately 29.4% from
approximately RMB51.8 million for FY2019 to approximately RMB36.6
million for FY2020. The Group’s net profit margin decreased from
approximately 10.9% for FY2019 to approximately 8.2% for FY2020.
Due to the impact caused by COVID-19, the Group adjusted the
focus in different major markets and took the initiative to reduce
sales to markets in Europe and the US which are more seriously
affected by COVID-19, resulting in a decrease in revenue. The amount
and proportion of revenue attributable to direct sales to overseas
customers that have higher gross profit margin in revenue dropped,
resulting in a decrease in net profit and net profit margin.

If the one-off expenses for the Listing were excluded, the Group’s
adjusted net profit margin for FY2020 was approximately 12.4%
(FY2019: approximately 15.9%).

Selling expenses

The Group's selling expenses decreased by approximately 9.5% from
approximately RMB20.0 million for FY2019 to approximately RMB18.1
million for FY2020, which was primarily due to the decrease in the
Group’s revenue, which caused the corresponding decrease in selling
expenses.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Administrative expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses decreased by approximately
13.8% from approximately RMB52.2 million in FY2019 to
approximately RMB45.0 million in FY2020, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the Group's revenue and one-off
Listing expenses.

Taxation

Income tax expenses decreased by approximately 31.8% to
approximately RMB8.8 million in FY2020 from approximately
RMB12.9 million in FY2019, which was due to the decrease in profit
of the Group.

The Group's effective tax rate in FY2020 remained the same as that
of FY2019, i.e. approximately 26.7%, which was mainly because
the non-taxable deductible one-time Listing expenses could not be
deducted before tax.

Liquidity and financial resources

As of 31 December 2020, the gearing ratio, which represents the
Group's total borrowings divided by total equity, was approximately
36.8% as at 31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: 47.4%). As at
31 December 2020, the Group's total borrowings were approximately
RMB155.9 million (31 December 2019: approximately RMB142.7
million) and the total equity was approximately RMB423.5 million
(31 December 2019: approximately RMB300.9 million). The total
borrowings represent the outstanding loans of the Group. The gearing
ratio of the Group had been stabilised.

The current ratio, which is calculated based on the total current
assets at the respective dates divided by the total current liabilities at
the respective dates, was approximately 1.7 as at 31 December 2020
(31 December 2019: approximately 1.4); whereas the quick ratio,
which is calculated based on the total current assets (excluding
inventories) at the respective dates divided by the total current
liabilities at the respective dates, was approximately 1.5 as at
31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: approximately 1.1).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s restricted cash and cash and
cash equivalents amounted to approximately RMB1.0 million and
RMB132.4 million, respectively (31 December 2019: approximately
RMB1.0 million and RMB116.6 million, respectively).

In FY2020, net cash used in operating activities was approximately
RMB14.5 million, net cash used in investing activities was
approximately RMB63.9 million and net cash generated from
financing activities was approximately RMB98.0 million.

In FY2019, net cash generated from operating activities was
approximately RMB62.5 million, net cash used in investing activities
was approximately RMB21.6 million and net cash used in financing
activities was approximately RMB114.5 million.

Working capital

The average inventory turnover period of the Group was
approximately 107.5 days in FY2020 (FY2019: approximately 86.3
days), which was primarily due to (i) the addition in inventory reserve
and preparation for future growing orders as anticipated by the
Group; and (i) the considerable impact of COVID-19 on the inventory
turnover.

The Group’s trade receivables increased from approximately
RMB60.2 million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB77.8
million as at 31 December 2020, as the payment by customers was
affected by the outbreak of COVID-19. The Group's average turnover
days of trade receivables increased from approximately 83.4 days in
FY2019 to approximately 85.1 days in FY2020.

The Group's trade and other payables increased by approximately
RMB5.5 million or approximately 10.7% from approximately RMB51.1
million as at 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB56.6 million
as at 31 December 2020. The Group's average trade payable
turnover days increased from approximately 41.2 days in FY2019 to
approximately 66.4 days in FY2020. The change was mainly due to
the impact of COVID-19 which the Group had delayed part of the
payment progress accordingly.
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ZECTFER FLEERERAT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Bank and other borrowings

As at 31 December 2020, all the bank and other borrowings,
amounting to approximately RMB155.9 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB142.7 million), were repayable on demand.

The weighted average effective interest rate as at 31 December 2020
was approximately 4.7% (31 December 2019: approximately 6.1%).

Significant investments, material acquisitions and disposal of
subsidiaries

Save for the investment made in relation to the new business of anti-
epidemic products (details of which are set out in the sub-section
headed "Anti-epidemic products” in this annual report), the Group
did not have any significant investments, material acquisitions and
disposal of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during FY2020.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not have any other plans
for material investments and capital assets except for those
disclosed in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds”
of the prospectus of the Company dated 28 February 2020 (the
“Prospectus”) and “Impact of the Epidemic and Outlook” in this
annual report.

Capital structure

The capital structure of the Group is mainly based on the equity
attributable to Shareholders (including share capital and reserves).
As at 31 December 2020, the total number of issued ordinary shares
was 520,886,000 with a par value of HK$0.001 each (31 December of
the Company (the “Shares”) 2019: 431,600,000 Shares).

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank and other borrowings of the
Group were secured by property, plant and equipment and restricted
cash. Details of which are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements as set out in this annual report.
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Contingent liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liability as at
31 December 2020 (31 December 2019: Nil).

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had an aggregate capital
commitment of approximately RMB23.7 million (31 December 2019:
approximately RMB59.9 million).

Financial management and treasury policy

The financial risk management of the Group is the responsibility of
the Group's treasury function at its head office. The Group adopted
prudent funding and treasury management policies while maintaining
an overall healthy financial position. The Group’s source of funding
was raised by cash generated from operating activities and bank
borrowings. The Group’s treasury policies mainly include managing
capital liquidity and yield to safeguard the healthy development of
the principal businesses of the Group. The Group regularly reviews
its major funding positions to ensure that it has adequate financial
resources in meeting its financial obligations. The Group is from time
to time considering various alternatives including but not limited to
financial institution borrowings, non-financial institution borrowings,
bonds issuance, etc.

Foreign exchange exposure

The Group's operating subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong operates
with most transactions being settled in US dollars ("USD"), except
for certain transactions which are denominated in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") or other currencies. The functional currency of this subsidiary
is USD. The Group's operating subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC
operate in the PRC and their functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB").
As at 31 December 2020, foreign exchange risk arose mainly from
certain intra-group transactions and balances of the operating
subsidiaries in the PRC which are denominated in USD and the
accrual of the Listing expenses which are denominated in HK$. The
Directors consider that no significant foreign exchange risk exists for
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employees and Pension Schemes

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had 665 (2019: 821) full-time
employees, of which, 26 of them were in Hong Kong and the rest of
them were stationed in Shantou and Shenzhen, the PRC.

The remuneration packages offered by the Group to its employees,
including salaries, accidental insurance and allowances, depending
on their job nature. Bonuses are generally discretionary and based in
part on employee performance and in part on the overall performance
of the Group’s business. The Group has implemented training
programmes for its employees to meet different job requirements,
such as training on production procedures for its staff at its production
department. It is believed that these initiatives have contributed to
the increased productivity of employees of the Group. The Group
has also adopted a share option scheme to reward, among others,
its employees for their contribution to the Group (the “Share Option
Scheme"), details of which are set out in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in the Report of Directors of this annual report.

As required by the relevant PRC laws and regulations, the Group has
participated in housing fund and various employee social security
plans that are organised by applicable local municipal and provincial
governments, including housing, pension, medical, work-related
injury and unemployment benefit plans, under which contributions
were made at specified percentages of the salaries of its employees.
Bonuses are generally discretionary and based in part on employee
performance and in part on the overall performance of its business.

The Group has arranged for its employees in Hong Kong to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “IMPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group's company in Hong Kong (the employer) and
its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the Group’s
companies and its employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 and
thereafter contributions are voluntary.
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Impact of The Epidemic and Outlook

Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group's operations were
being affected and will still be subject to further development of the
outbreak of COVID-19 and government advice or restrictions. The
Directors will continue to assess the impact of the epidemic on the
Group's operation and financial performance and closely monitor
and manage the Group's exposure to the risks and uncertainties in
connection therewith. The Group will take appropriate measures as
necessary and inform the Shareholders and potential investors of the
Company as and when necessary.

On the other hand, with the aim of further developing its business and
continuing its growth and also taking into account the development
of the current epidemic situation and the intense relations between
China and the United States, the Group will implement the following
strategies:

° continue to prioritise and focus on overseas market by (i)
maintaining and strengthening relationship with its existing
direct overseas customers; and (ii) staying alert to the epidemic,
while expanding the customer base and continuing to prioritise
and focus on overseas markets;

o continue to strengthen, expand and diversify its customer base
by focusing on (i) the PRC Export-Oriented Wholesalers; and (ii)
the PRC retailers;

° diversify its product offerings through continuous development
of new products and global licensing strategy;

° expand its production capacity and improve its production
efficiency; and

o allocate more resources to expand domestic sales.
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ZECTFER FLEERERAT

CORPORATE

GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long-term success
and continuing development of the Group. Therefore, the Board is
committed to upholding good corporate standards and procedures,
so as to improve the accountability system and transparency of the
Group, protect the interests and create value for Shareholders.

During the period from the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2020
(the “Relevant Period”), the Company has applied the principles
and complied with all applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities of the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), save and except the deviation as follows:

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Yu Huang is currently the
chairman of the Board and the chief executive officer of the Group.
Mr. Yu Huang has been responsible for the overall management
of the Group since the establishment of the Group. The Board
believes that the current structure enables the Group to make
and implement business decisions swiftly and effectively which
promotes the Group's development in line with other strategies and
business direction. The Board considers that the balance of power
and authority, accountability and independent decision-making
under the present arrangement will not be impaired because of the
diverse background and experience of the executive Directors, non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors. Further,
the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee"),
which consists of independent non-executive Directors, has free and
direct access to the Company’s external auditors and independent
professional advisers when it considers necessary. Therefore, the
Directors consider that the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is appropriate in such circumstance. In order to maintain
good corporate governance and to fully comply with code provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board will regularly review the need to
appoint different individuals to perform the roles of chairman of the
Board and chief executive officer separately.

_\_LII_/\—/-\—\

Lt /D#ﬁpz

EERAEEERERARRNOEEE LAY
AEBRHKD RFSEERNERNM -
I BEFERIERRINEERRERE
Fr o AEREASERESEMERAE - RE
PR e Ko AR AE(E(E

BEETRAME—F-_THFE+_A=1+—HI
HiR ([ EEME]) - AR BB AT
Er EmARA (T EWRAL) M+ mmd
xEasA ([REEASTR)) MERA - I
BT BB R ST RIS - AN B IRER
s

BB EERTRATRNEEA2.1 5
FHERITRAENBETERR— AEIT -
REEEBRAEESIFERASEITRE
HeoREBEEAREERIUR—EEER
SEMNERERE - EESHEERAREEN
SEBIEB B IEL W EITERRTE @ R
AEEFEEMRBERERHFRANER - B
RHAITES  IERITESREBELIFRTES
WEShERZTY  BEEERAEALY
B IS FE - MEMREHRRENS
SUTERIE o I BB IENITESRA
REOEZZES ((BREE®])) TRER
AEREEN  BEEEREREANARMNINZ
AN RBIEPIER o AL - EERARZ
EBR T RECEEATAMTAIEXE
A21ETVBIRE - REFRITEEES

TEETFEEERTANTRIENEA2.
- EESBTHRIZETRAALTRBITE
ECEFRITREEBCHNTE -

17



Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EEERRE

Further, Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny, an executive Director, sold an
aggregate of 300,000 Shares on 22 July and 23 July 2020. These
transactions took place during the blackout period under rule A3(a)(i)
of the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code") without notification to the chairman of
the Company. The non-compliance was not deliberate and completely
unintentional and was merely due to unfamiliarity of Mr. Pui Lik
Leung Kenny with the requirements under the Model Code (the
“Non-Compliance Incident”). The Non-compliance Incident was
immediately identified by the Company and such change of interest
was subsequently disclosed on 27 July 2020.

Board of Directors

The Board is directly, and indirectly through its various committees (the
“Board Committees”), responsible for the overall management of
the business of the Group, formulating the Group’s overall strategic
direction and maintaining appropriate levels of review, challenge and
guidance in its relationship with the management. The management
is delegated with the authority and responsibility by the Board for the
day-to-day management and administration of the Group. The Board is
provided with the updates from management to give a balanced and
understandable assessment of the performance, recent development
and prospects of the Group on a regular basis.

The Board is the ultimate decision-making body for all matters
considered material to the Group and discharge its responsibilities
on corporate governance either by itself or the Board Committees
set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code which include the
following:

1. to develop and review the policies and practice on corporate
governance of the Group and make recommendations;

2. to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

3.  to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to the Directors and

employees; and

5. to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company.
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Composition of The Board

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors,
including three executive Directors, one non-executive Director and
three independent non-executive Directors as set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Huang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny
Mr. NiYanlong

Non-executive Director
Ms. Zheng Jingyun
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. He Weidong
Ms. Liu Man
Ms. Zhao Weiwei

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
30 to 34 of this annual report.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and (2) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors representing not less than one-third of the Board and at
least one of whom has the appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise. The Company
has received from each independent non-executive Director an
annual confirmation of his/her independence, and the Company
considers that as at the date of this annual report such Directors are
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there are no other relationship
(including financial, business, family, and other material/relevant
relationships) among the members of the Board as of the date of this
report.
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Board Diversity

The Board admits that board diversity is increasingly important
as a factor to enhance corporate governance and promote board
effectiveness. The current Board composition is well balanced with
each Director having skills, experience and expertise relevant to
the business operations, development and strategy of the Group
and from a variety of backgrounds. Furthermore, the Board has a
wide range of age, ranging from 35 years old to 58 years old, and
has achieved gender diversity by having four male Directors and
three female Directors. The Board is well balanced and diversified in
education, professional background, functional expertise, gender, age,
culture and industrial experience.

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which set out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board and the factors (including
but not limited to skills, regional and industry experience, professional
experience, background, education, race, gender, age, culture and
other qualities, etc.) to be considered in determining the composition
of the Board so as to ensure the Board has the appropriate balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives that are required to
support the execution of its business strategy and to maximise the
Board's effectiveness. The Board will review the Board diversity policy
on a regular basis to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Board Process and Meetings

The Board meets regularly to determine overall strategies, receive
management updates, approve business plans as well as interim and
annual results and to consider other significant matters. Special Board
meetings are convened as and when needed. The management also
provides updates to the Board with respect to the business activities
and development of the Group at these meetings on a regular basis.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the Group's
development through his/her constructive and informed comments.
All the members of the Board disclose and update their number and
nature of offices held and time involved on a regular basis.
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The Board held 4 meetings during FY2020 for discussing and
approving the operation and business development of the Company,
including without limitation, change in auditors, financial budget
and financial statements of the Company. The attendance of each
Director at Board and committee meetings of the Company, whether
in person or by means of electronic communication, is detailed in the
table below:

EEERRE

EZgRN_F_THRFEHAHRERNAE
I EAR RN EENEBER &
EETRRERZEED - MIEEERART]
MPBEERER - SEFTHEARREFTERE
gggd (THHRAIUEFRET B
BN TEK

Attendance/No. of meetings held during FY2020
EERE,/ M2 SRBEENERBERY

Audit Remuneration Nomination  Annual General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Ezg ENZEE FMzEg REZES BRRAFAE
Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Yu Huang RIEKE 44 1N 1N
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny BRIREE 414 11 1 A
Mr. NiYanlong RERTE 44 1
Non-executive Director kHTES
Ms. Zheng Jingyun BHETL 44 1
Independent Non-executive BYFHTES
Directors
Mr. He Weidong MEREE 4/4 202 ”n 171 17
Ms. Liu Man gLt 4/4 202 ”n 171 17
Ms. Zhao Weiwei HERL L 4/4 202 171 171

Terms of Appointment and Re-Election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors entered into a service contract with
the Company and each independent non-executive Director and the
non-executive Director has signed a letter of appointment. The said
service contracts and letters of appointment are for an initial term of
three years commencing from the Listing Date, subject to re-election
in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”) and termination in accordance with their respective
terms.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors shall
retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
every three years. However, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Any Director who is appointed by the Board to fill the casual
vacancy and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to
the existing Board shall hold office only until the first general meeting
after his appointment and the next following annual general meeting
of the Company respectively and shall be eligible for re-election
pursuant to Article 83(3) of the Articles.
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As such, Mr. NiYanlong, Ms. Zheng Jingyun and Ms. Zhao Weiwei
will retire from office as Director and being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Thursday, 27 May 2021 in accordance
with the Articles.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by
Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding dealings in the securities of the Company by the Directors
and the Group's senior management who, because of his/her office
or employment, is likely to possess inside information in relation to
the Group or the Company's securities. Having made specific enquiry,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
during the Relevant Period save for the Non-compliance Incident. The
Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the Model Code by
the senior management of the Group during the Relevant Period. The
Company has paid due regard to the Non-compliance Incident and in
order to prevent the occurrence of similar incidents, the Company had
immediately reminded all Directors again the dealing restriction during
the blackout period and the importance of complying with the Listing
Rules in their dealings of the Shares and in particular the importance
of giving written notice and obtaining written acknowledgement prior
to conducting any intended dealings. The Company had also provided
further briefings to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and
enhance their awareness of good corporate governance practices.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The Group acknowledges the importance of continuing professional
development for the Directors to extend and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a
Director and of the conduct, business activities and development of
the Company.
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Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, and should provide their training
records to the Company. According to the training records provided
by the Directors, the trainings attended by them during FY2020 are
summarised as follows:

EEERRE

REBECREATARE - IEESEDER
BEERR BRI EHEMBLREE - I
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Corporate Governance, Regulatory Development and

Directors Trainings on other relevant topics
TEER BEERERR

5= H {th A5 BA R RE AV T

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Yu Huang RIBEE v

Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny ABRzmEAE v

Mr. NiYanlong REELE v

Non-executive Director FHITES

Ms. Zheng Jingyun HEEL+ v

Independent Non-executive BUKHTES

Directors

Mr. He Weidong AR EE v

Ms. Liu Man Bleit V

Ms. Zhao Weiwei MRt V

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee"”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”), for overseeing particular aspects of the Group's
affairs. All Board Committees were established with written terms
of reference in compliance with the relevant code provisions of the
CG Code, which are available at the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kidztech.net).

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, including the
independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Zhao Weiwei, Ms. Liu
Man and Mr. He Weidong. Ms. Zhao is the chairlady of the Audit
Committee, who holds the appropriate professional qualifications as
required under Rules 3.10(2) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.
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The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on appointment or re-appointment
and removal of external auditor; review financial statements of the
Company and judgments in respect of financial reporting; and oversee
the effectiveness of the internal control and risk management
systems of the Group.

As disclosed above, during FY2020, two Audit Committee meetings
were held to review and discuss with the management and the
external auditor in respect of the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, as well as reviewing the results for FY2019,
unaudited interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2020.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members, including
two independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Liu Man (who is the
chairlady of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr. He Weidong and
one executive Director, Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendation to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and
structure relating to all Directors, senior management and general
staff of the Group and ensure that none of the Directors or any of
their associates determine their own remuneration.

As disclosed above, during FY2020, one Remuneration Committee
meeting was held to review the remuneration structure of the
Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of senior management by band for
FY2020 is set out below:
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Number of individuals
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Emolument bands
Nil to HKD1,000,000
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of five members, including three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. He Weidong (who is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee), Ms. Liu Man and Ms. Zhao
Weiwei and two executive Directors, Mr. Yu Huang and Mr. Pui Lik
Leung Kenny.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review
the structure, size and composition of the Board annually, identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members; assess the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on matters relating to appointment
and reappointment of Directors.

To enhance the nomination process for a Director candidate, a
nomination policy was adopted during FY2020 as a guidance
on the selection process and Board succession planning. The
Nomination Committee will utilise various methods for identifying
Director candidates, including recommendations from the Board
members, management, and professional search firms and may
review of resume and job history, conduct personal interviews and
verification of professional and personal references or perform the
background checks, etc. On evaluation of the Director candidates
including incumbents and candidates nominated by the Shareholders,
the Board and the Nomination Committee will take into account
whether a candidate has the qualifications, skills and experience,
gender diversity, etc. that can add to and complement the range of
skills, experience and background of the existing Directors and may
consider the following qualifications are at a minimum to be required
of a Director candidate for recommendation to the Board, or the
continued service of the existing Director:

° the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

° proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field and
the ability to exercise sound business judgment;

° skills that are complementary to those of the existing Board;

° the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company's success;

° an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is required
of a member of the Board and the commitment of time and
energy necessary to diligently carry out those responsibilities;
and

o independence as required by the Listing Rules.
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The Board and the Nomination Committee will also make reference to
the Board diversity policy, details of which are set out in the section
headed "Board Diversity” above.

As disclosed above, during FY2020, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held to review the structure of the Board and assess
the independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

Company Secretary

Ms. Koo Ching Fan and Ms. Cao Xuelian are the joint company
secretaries of the Company. Ms. Koo's primary contact person at the
Company is Ms. Cao Xuelian, one of the joint company secretaries of
the Company. Ms. Koo has confirmed that she has attended no less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in FY2020. Please refer
to the section headed "Biographical Details of Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report for their biographical information.

Directors’ and External Auditor’'s Responsibilities for
the Financial Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair of the state of affairs
of the Group. In preparing the financial statements which give a true
and fair view, it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
should be selected and applied consistently.

This statement of the external auditors of the Company acknowledging
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’s Report” contained in this annual report.

Internal Control and Risk Management

The Company recognises the importance of good internal control
procedures. The Board believes that the internal control and risk
management systems and current procedures including the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company's accounting and financial
reporting function, are sufficient in terms of the comprehensiveness,
practicability and effectiveness.

The Board has overall responsibility for the risk management and
internal control systems for reviewing its effectiveness. The Group
has an internal audit function which conducts review on adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group. Such review is conducted annually. Yet, these systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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The Audit Committee is also accountable for, and will review of, the
Company'’s financial controls, risk management and internal control
systems on a regular basis.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and dissemination
of inside information, the Company shall assess the circumstances
under which inside information may arise from time to time and
disclose inside information as soon as reasonably practicable in
accordance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO") and
the Listing Rules. The Company conducts its business affairs with
close regard to the "“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission and imposes a
strict prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information by directors, employees and other relevant persons (such
as external service providers and project working team members).

Auditor's Remuneration

For FY2020, the fee paid or payable in respect of the services
provided is as follows:
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Shareholders’ Rights and Investor Relations

The Board values the importance of communications with the
Shareholders. As one of the measures to safeguard the Shareholders’
interests and rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at
Shareholders’ meeting on each substantial issue including the
re-election of individual Directors. All resolutions put forward at the
Shareholders’ meeting will be conducted by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules and the poll results will be published on the websites
of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.kidztech.net).

The next annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Thursday, 27 May 2021 and notice of the meeting will be sent to the
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days before the said meeting.
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Procedures and Right for Shareholders to Convene
Extraordinary General Meeting

The following procedures for Shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") are subject to the
Articles, and the applicable legislation and regulations, in particular
the Listing Rules:

1. if any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit
of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company submit a written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting
shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition; and

2. the Board should within 21 days from the date of the deposit
for the requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM to be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If the
Board fails to do so, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Shareholders may also make reference to Article 58 of the Articles for
further details.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director of the Company

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting convened to deal with the appointment or election
of Director(s), wishes to propose a person for election as a Director
at that meeting, he/she may lodge a written notice at the Company's
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 802, 8/F, Inter-
Continental Plaza, 94 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the
Company. Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director can be found on the Company’s website
(www.kidztech.net).

Investors Relations

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with the Shareholders through various channels including

28

PR B FRBERIRIAE 2 i2Fr AR

INTREARBRREIARS ([ RR4%FR K
) 22 REST AR R ERER ROR
Mo LEREWBRA

1. EAIEAERNEEERERRA
TORARBHREA (AARFRK
RRGZRERE) tDZ2—HKRRE
BAARPEFTEAMERLERR
Ko BREFERFABRRFAIAE
N ZERPIEANEAER - B
ZAGRNEZZERIEM 2 EAR
BIT R

2. EBEEENEZEREHE21HAZ
REBERNEZZEXEMEARNR
FRIRERRIAE - BESE8EH
REBHBBREZREF  BIEZ2EZX
ATAIBEARESAEL LS - MW
BEE2ERATHAESSCHRAMELE
WMBEEEAXERAARINESE
KALER -

BRI AT 2 IR EFZ A 58 REME % 5

I o

BRERIEBRABRERNRER ZIEF

MEBRLEITRARINEREEMERM
ZRERE EREZREENG HIRER
AARES  FrIEXEMBRNEARFE
BEEEEME (U ABRBNERDPEE
IEREEMRAEFLEES2E) + I
HABRRBZARIME - BEBREIERA
BBRANNRERZFARRFIRAR RS
4 (www.kidztech.net) & ©

REEBRE

EFERHIEBZEREBEBRAE
B AERARBRM (MFERS - P



ZECTFER FLEERERAT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

general meetings, press releases, announcements and corporate
communications such as the annual report, interim report and
circulars. Latest news and updates of the Group’s business and
operation are also available on the Company’s website (www.
kidztech.net).

The Company has adopted a Shareholders’ communication policy.
Enquiries and proposals from Shareholders, investors and all
stakeholders of the Company are welcomed. Enquires to the Board or
the Company must be deposited at or sent by post to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Room 802, 8/F, Inter-
Continental Plaza, 94 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui East, Kowloon,
Hong Kong with full name, contact details and identification provided.

Any enquires in relation to the shareholdings, share transfer or
registration of the Company may contact the Company’s share
registrar. Their contact details can be found on the Company’s
website (www.kidztech.net).

Constitutional Documents

The latest Articles (conditionally adopted by a special resolution dated
13 February 2020 and effective from 18 March 2020) are available
at the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the
Company (www.kidztech.net).
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EELERERERE

Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Huang (R48), aged 40, founded the Group through the
establishment of Shantou Chenghai Jinjun Toys Co., Ltd.* (JZ&
TSR BHITAEARAR) in June 2009. Mr. Yu is the chairman,
executive Director, chief executive officer and controlling shareholder
of the Company. He was appointed as a Director in October 2019 and
was re-designated as an executive Director in November 2019.

Mr. Yu has over 12 years of experience in the toy manufacturing and
sale industry. Prior to the establishment of the Group, Mr. Yu worked
as the deputy general manager of Shantou Chenghai Changxing
Paper Foil Co., Ltd.* CEEMZEEEEEMABEERAT) from July
2004 to March 2007 and the general manager of Shantou Chenghai
Jinjun Toys Factory* CIUSE™ A/ & #BEEITER), which is primarily
engaged in toy manufacturing, from March 2007 to June 2009. Mr.
Yu graduated from the Guangdong Justice Police Vocational College*
(BERAEZEEBEEZMR) in the PRC and was awarded a professional
diploma in law.

Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny (E2%), aged 50, was appointed as a
Director in October 2019 and re-designated as an executive Director
in November 2019. Mr. Pui is a deputy general manager of the Group
who is mainly responsible for managing the sales function.

Mr. Pui has over 20 years of experience in the toy manufacturing and
sales industry. He joined the Group in July 2011 as a director and the
general manager of Kidztech Toys Manufacturing Limited. Prior to
joining the Group, he held management positions in various toys and
trading companies.

Mr. Pui obtained a Diploma in Mechanical Engineering (Production)
from Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education (Sha Tin).
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Mr. Ni Yanlong ({2 Z#8), aged 45, was appointed as an executive
Director in November 2019. Mr. Ni is a deputy general manager of
the Group who is mainly responsible for managing the administrative,
public relations and human resources functions of the Group. He
joined Kidztech Intelligent Technology Co. Ltd.* (FiEEaERHL
AR AT (“Kidztech Intelligent”) (now known as Kidztech
(Guangdong) Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd.*) as a deputy general
manager in August 2017 and was a director from September 2017 to
October 2019.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Ni had been an official in various
government departments.

Mr. Ni obtained a legal professional practising certificate and a
lawyer’s certificate in the PRC. He was awarded a Bachelor degree
in International Economic Law from the Guangdong University of
Finance and Economics (ER 4K E).

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zheng Jingyun (B88#E), aged 46, was appointed as a non-
executive Director in November 2019. Ms. Zheng is mainly
responsible for advising on business strategy of the Group. She joined
the Group in April 2016 and was a director of Kidztech Intelligent from
April 2016 to October 2019.

Ms. Zheng has been an executive director and a general manager of
various private companies.

Ms. Zheng graduated from Chengcheng Vocational and Technical
School* (B3I T+ 22) in the PRC.

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. He Weidong (A1 5R) (formerly known as He Jinghui ({f] &),
aged 58, was appointed as an independent non-executive Director in
February 2020. He was an independent director of Kidztech Intelligent
from September 2017 to October 2019.

Mr. He has over 20 years of experience in corporate and investment
management. He held management positions at China Network
Communications Co., Ltd. (REIAEBEER AR (which was
merged with China United Network Communications Group Co., Ltd.
later) and CNC Kuandai Network Co., Ltd.* (BB ESEEBRETA
A]). He is currently a shareholder, an executive director and a general
manager of various private companies.
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Mr. He obtained a Bachelor of Radio Engineering degree from the
Beijing University of Posts and Telecommunications (3t REE
&) in the PRC, and an Executive Master of Business Administration
diploma from the Tsinghua University (B KZ) in the PRC. He
obtained the “qualification as an independent director of listed
companies” from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 2018.

Ms. Liu Man (8]&), aged 35, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director in February 2020. She was an independent director
of Kidztech Intelligent from September 2017 to October 2019. Ms. Liu
worked as an assistant judge at Shantou City Intermediate People’s
Court Criminal No.1 Court from August 2010 to May 2017. Since May
2017, she has been an assistant to the general manager of Zhuhai
Technology Venture Capital Co., Ltd.* (3G RHRAIZREBR A 7).

Ms. Liu obtained a legal professional qualification certificate. She
obtained the “qualification as an independent director of listed
companies” from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 2018. She
obtained a Bachelor of Laws degree and a Bachelor of Arts degree in
English from the Huazhong University of Science & Technology (%
FRHEAZ) in the PRC. She further obtained a Master in Economic

Law degree from the Wuhan University ()2 X£2) in the PRC.

Ms. Zhao Weiwei (##1#), aged 39, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in February 2020. She was an
independent director of Kidztech Intelligent from September 2017 to
October 2019.

Ms. Zhao has worked at various accountancy and taxation
consultancy firms, and held management positions in the tax
department of Shenzhou Digital Information Technology Co., Ltd* (1%
MEHHE B REERAF) and Shenzhou Yitai Information Technology
Co., Ltd.* (1N SR BHEMAR A R]). Since December 2017, she
has been a senior manager at Zhongcheng Yinghe Tax Consultant

(Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (Rt KRB H5 A0 55 P (L) BIRAF).

Ms. Zhao has been a certified public accountant and certified tax
consultant of the PRC since July 2009 and May 2016, respectively.
She obtained the “qualification as an independent director of listed
companies” from the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in 2018. She
obtained a Bachelor of Accounting degree and a Master degree in
business administration from the Minzu University of China (FF 5% R i&%
KE)in the PRC.
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Senior Management

Mr. Wu Demiao ({RfE#), aged 34, is the financial controller of the
Group and is mainly responsible for the financial and accounting
matters of the Group. He joined the Group as a deputy financial
controller of Kidztech Intelligent in March 2015 and was subsequently
promoted as the financial controller in September 2015.

Mr. Wu has over 10 years of experience in accounting and finance.
He had been working in various accountancy firms prior to joining the
Group. He has been a certified public accountant in the PRC since
December 2013.

Mr. Wu obtained a Bachelor of Accounting degree from the Zhejiang
University of Finance and Economics (#1/T B 4XE285%) in the PRC.

Ms. Cao Xuelian (&), aged 34, is a deputy general manager of
the Group and one of the joint company secretaries of the Company.
She is mainly responsible for the company secretarial matters,
investors relationship and legal functions of the Group. She has joined
the Group as the secretary to the board of directors of Kidztech
Intelligent since April 2015 and since August 2017 she has also been
its deputy general manager.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Cao worked as a paralegal at a law
firm and a legal manager at a public company. She obtained a legal
professional qualification certificate and a legal professional practising
certificate in the PRC.

She obtained a Bachelor of History degree from the Hubei University
(1t RE) and a Master of Laws degree from the Southwest
University of Political Science & Law (FAFIBUEAE) in the PRC.
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Joint Company Secretary

Ms. Koo Ching Fan (EE& %), aged 51, was appointed as one of
the joint company secretaries of the Company with effect from
1 November 2019. Ms. Koo is a director of Fair Wind Secretarial
Services Limited and has over 20 years of experience in the company
secretarial field. She is currently a company secretary of seven
companies listed on the Stock Exchange, including: Capinfo Company
Limited (Stock Code: 1075), CMIC Ocean En-Tech Holding Co.,
Ltd. (Stock Code: 206), International Housewares Retail Company
Limited (Stock Code: 1373), Shenzhen Investment Holdings Bay Area
Development Company Limited (Stock Code: 737), Shun Ho Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 253), Shun Ho Property Investments Limited
(Stock Code: 219) and Magnificent Hotel Investments Limited (Stock
Code: 201).

Ms. Koo has extensive knowledge and experience in dealing with
corporate governance and compliance issues of listed companies.
Ms. Koo is an associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and the Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) in England. She is also a fellow member of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

* For identification purpose only

34

R ER/NITR =<4

BEZLZL: 51w  BZE—NF+—A
—BREZRTAERR AR — R E AR
2 -BRIRASENERBERARES
BEARMEESHEB D20 FKL5H - HIR
PR ETAR (BIEEEMEBEE
BHOBRAF (BRMHARSE :1075)  EEE
G FRERBHE IR B R A R (AR R5E
206) « FIEREZTEARAR (MR -
1373) ~ AYEEEEERER AR (KD
R3%:737)  IBiERAR QA (BRHA
5% 0 253) ~ IESMEZREBR AR (RHK
g% :219) REXBEREGR AR (&K
% - 201)) BERTIWE -

BRI ERE LT ARCEERRARER
THAEGEENANBNER M RER
FFwE g RREFFARDAERS (A
MEANERTRABRR®) 81 - ®ITA

FHAREMAGEREE

* (BT



ZECTFER FLEERERAT

REPORT OF DIRECTORS

The Directors hereby present their report and audited consolidated
financial statements for FY2020.

Principal Activities and Business Review

The Group is principally engaged in the design, development,
manufacture and sale of high-quality smart toy vehicles, smart
interactive toys and traditional toys. The products of the Group are
manufactured on an original brand manufacturing, ODM and OEM
bases, and are (i) branded with the Group’s “kidztech” brand; (ii)
cobranded with (a) reowned automobile manufacturers, (b) popular
entertainment characters featured in animated television series or
motions pictures or (c) toy brand owner; and (iii) branded under the
Group’s overseas customers’ brands, which mainly represent the
products the Group manufactures on an ODM and OEM bases and
the products sold to the Group's customers branded under their
respective brands. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

For discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), including a fair review of business and an indication of likely
future developments in the Group's business, can be found in section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 6 to 16 of
this annual report.

Segment Information

An analysis of the Group's performance for FY2020 by operating
segment is set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for FY2020 are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on page 59 of this annual
report.

The Group did not have a formal dividend payment plan or policy.
Declaration of dividends was subject to the discretion of the
Directors, depending on the results of operation, working capital and
cash position, future business and earnings, capital requirements,
contractual restrictions under the bank loan agreements, if any, as
well as any other factors which the Directors might consider relevant.
In addition, any declaration and payment as well as the amount of the
dividends would be subject to the provisions of the Articles and the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.
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The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.018
per Share for FY2020 (FY2019: Nil), amounting to approximately
HK$9,375,948 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,894,548), which
represents approximately 33% of the Company’s net profit for
FY2020. The proposed final dividend is subject to approval by the
Shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM") to be held on 27 May 2021. Upon Shareholders’ approval,
the proposed final dividend will be paid on or around 18 June 2021
to Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of
the Company on 4 June 2021.

Closure of Register of Members

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 24 May 2021 to Thursday, 27 May 2021, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of Shares will be registered. In
order to determine the identity of the Shareholders who are entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM, all duly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road
East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 21 May 2021.

Subject to the approval of Shareholders at the AGM, the proposed
final dividend will be payable on or around Friday, 18 June 2021 to
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company after the close of business at 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 4 June
2021, and the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 3 June 2021 to Friday, 4 June 2021, during which
no transfer of Shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all share transfer documents, accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited, at
Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 June 2021 for registration.

36

EEeEBRE T TP RFEMNRGR
BEAER0NSHBTL (ZE—LHRFE
&) - 5 3499,375, 948%%(*@“‘3"”7/\&
#7894,5487T) * {E AR T
FREAMFINIP% - EiE EEHHHX BAEAF-Z
T—FRAZTEHBITZARRINRERE
FRE ((REBEKRSG]) #ibF - FFREM
HE - BHRAEBREBER-_ZE=_—F A
+NABSAIESINF-_E-—FXANB%A
IR AR R A MAORLER -

HiEHERin @

RARER B —FhA-+ImH (25
—E-T-—FRA-T+H(EHM)
(BEEMABEEAN) HERERNEFPE
SE?Z%E - REEERRHERNBIRIBAFERE
WRE LIREZBIRZH0 - FARNDBF
XHERBBZBE AR -_F_—%hA
—t—HB (B8R THFEE=1ToAX[E
Zli BZBRmBFELREERESFETAR
RAE] - M REBERARER -\ =AM
RORTIE - PHEELTFE -

FRERRRBERG FHOER - FTiEE

NEAKEFRZZE-_—F/"A+/\B (5
F) ARk TR ZE—FXAMAB (2
HFR) TFUR= T2 AREEREST)
Zli ﬂﬂﬁ%%ﬂﬁWZ%ﬁ RIAERAANEIFES
T —FXA=H(EfM) 2= =—
FXRANB (280 EERERNDBRE
TR REAEZERBCRBREZE
& FRERDBF X HEREHRE - 5B
AR T —FAZH (EH=) TF X
K= THAlkERR Rz RO BPELRSE
FEEHFELBRAR - It AEE2ERE
R-N\=SFEMFLRTUE - JHEEEF

&
n= e



Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years, as extracted from the consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 120 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Details of the movements during FY2020 in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of movements during FY2020 in the share capital of the
Company are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Reserves

As at 31 December 2020, the Company's reserve available for
distribution to the Shareholders, calculated in accordance with the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands and the Articles, amounted to
approximately RMB379,954,000. Details of the movements in the
reserves of the Group during FY2020 are set out in note 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Equity Linked Agreement

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
below, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or
existed during FY2020.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally adopted the Share Option Scheme on
13 February 2020, so as to grant options to selected participants as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the Group. Given that
the Directors are entitled to determine any performance targets to be
achieved as well as the minimum period that an option must be held
before an option can be exercised on a case by case basis, and that
the exercise price of an option cannot in any event fall below the price
stipulated in the Listing Rules or such higher price as may be fixed by
the Directors, it is expected that grantees of an option will make an
effort to contribute to the development of the Group to bring about
an increased market price of the Shares in order to capitalise on the
benefits of the options granted.

The Directors may, at its absolute discretion, grant options to any
of the following classes of participants: (a) any employee (whether
full-time or part-time including any executive director but excluding
any non-executive director) of the Company, any of the subsidiaries
or any entity (the “Invested Entity") in which any member of the
Group holds an equity interest (“Eligible Employee”); (b) any non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive directors
of the Company, any of the subsidiaries or any Invested Entity; (c)
any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to any member of the
Group or any Invested Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any Invested Entity; (g) any
adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any area of the
business or business development of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; and (h) any other group or classes of participants
who have contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture,
business alliance or other business arrangement to the development
and growth of the Group.

38

B RT 2

RARKRZZZTF - A+ =R B IRHER
—IARERERTE) - UREFELEERHER
R (E RIS RSB P B R R AR 2 22
B - ARNEFARERBREEEMAED
MR B ERBRE AT ERI AR B RS
HAfE - O0_ERB AR TT R EEEMIER TA
BHER ETRARENBRREZAEIETE
BB S ER - S TRHRBREARARBE N
REAEENZERELER @ EMERHOTE
B B BER S BREMSE -

EEA2ERBRERTIIEN2RBERE
BB - (QARAF - EFRMBARHAE
B{IAIR B AR A B T ERE ([Fr
REBR]) NEMER (ThEBesRi
BREMNTES  BEFEEEFIERT
%) ([fEKRER] : ) ARE] - E[H
BARISEMMIREERNEMIFNTE
= (BRELIFNTES) (O AEEEWM
BB ARISUEM TR E BB T E R
BHIER © (d) AEBEERIAK R AR S EM
FIREBERNENEP eI/ EH
ERR B ARSI E BREIRHIE -
P HA AT A LTRER - (I A%
E{EAIR B A BT E B EMA
REAEEEMKE ARHEMFMIREER
PRETERESNFTAA (@ AKREETM
X B ARSI AT E B EBRE
SEBRRNTMERKEMARA LB
Al R BEHATREERABRE - X%
B s Lt TS L HE T AR R BB R NI R A
HEBE IR 2 8 E BT -



The total number of the Shares which may be allotted and issued
upon the exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options
which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Company) to be
granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
number of Shares in issue on the Listing Date, being 52,000,000
Shares. As at 31 December 2020, no option had been granted since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme. The total number of
Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of
the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the number of Shares in issue for the time being. Any
further grant of options in excess of the 1% limit shall be subject to
Shareholders’ approval in general meeting with such grantee and his
associates abstaining from voting.

The subscription price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be a price determined at the discretion of the Directors, but
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade in
one or more board lots of the Shares on the date of the offer for the
grant, which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the offer for the
grant; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share. A nominal consideration
of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of an option.

Unless there is an early termination of the Share Option Scheme
pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme, the Share Option
Scheme will remain in force for a period which may not expire
later than of 10 years commencing on the date on which the Share
Option Scheme is adopted. The period during which an option may
be exercised will be determined by the Directors in their absolute
discretion, save that no option shall be exercised later than 10 years
from the date of grant, subject to early termination of the Share
Option Scheme pursuant to the rules of the Share Option Scheme. As
at 31 December 2020, the remaining life of the Share Option Scheme
is approximately 8 years and 11 months.
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Disclosure of Interests

(1)

40

Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
the underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including the interest or short positions which
any such Director or chief executive was taken or deemed to
have under such provision of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
were as follows:

EENESITBRABREND - 18
AR ERR TR SRR
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Number of Approximate
Capacity/ the Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest interested in Long/Short position Shareholding
FisE/ EERERN
EEpE B/ BEEE RAEE /%A BABRES
Mr. Yu Huang (Note 1) Interested in 206,946,667 Long position 39.73%
RIEFE(MF) a controlled corporation
REEEER e
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny Interest in 21,080,000 Long position 4.05%
(Note 2) a controlled corporation
BRlIs kA (fE2) RELERER e
Ms. Zheng Jingyun (Note 3) Interest of spouse 35,966,667 Long position 6.90%
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Notes:

(1) Top Synergy Y&C Limited is owned as to approximately 94.79%
by Mr. Yu Huang and as to approximately 5.21% by Ms. Chen
Cheng, respectively. Therefore, Mr. Yu Huang is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Top Synergy Y&C Limited for
the purpose of the SFO.

(2) Keen Pacemaker Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Pui Lik Leung
Kenny. Therefore, Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny is deemed to be
interested in all the Shares held by Keen Pacemaker Limited for
the purpose of the SFO.

(3) Ms. Zheng Jingyun is the spouse of Mr. Cai Fengguang.
Therefore, Ms. Zheng Jingyun is deemed to be interested in
all the Shares that Mr. Cai Fengguang is interested in for the
purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors nor chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest and short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, required to be recorded in the
register or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and

Debentures

So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2020, the
following persons/entities (other than the Directors or the chief
executive of the Company) had an interest or short position
in the Shares and underlying Shares which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions
2 and 3 of part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or otherwise notified to the Company were as

(1)

TERRMEMATRRD - 8
R EEEP R RE

MEEFRM R-_ZT-_FTF+_-A
=t+—8"  THAL/EE GEEAR
REERZESTRAL) RARER
DA A BIRIRE S & A
EIEFIZEXVERSE 2 K& 39 SAE A
ZK AT ARERARRIRE
EHE R EENE 336 IEBEFEFED
Maﬂm HBRITHEARARIAIHE

follows: YK E
Number of Approximate
Capacity/ the Shares held/ Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest interested in Long/Short position Shareholding
RREH B/ RHME RHEE /%A BABRED
Ms. Chen Cheng (Note 1) Interest of spouse 206,946,667 Long position 39.73%
BB+ (FIEE1) FL iR 35
Top Synergy Y&C Limited Beneficial owner 206,946,667 Long position 39.73%
EREBA e
Ms. Ng Mo Sum (Note 2) Interested in 55,333,333 Long position 10.62%
a controlled corporation
REOLL(H3E2) RErERER 55
Mr. Wu Shupeng (Note 3) Interest of spouse 55,333,333 Long position 10.62%
KBNS 4 (F13E3) [ 15
Motivational Mathematics Beneficial owner 55,333,333 Long position 10.62%
Limited
EREBA e
Mr. Cai Fengguang (Note 4) Interest in 35,966,667 Long position 6.90%
a controlled corporation
BExx (i) R E g HE
Charming Flair Limited Beneficial owner 35,966,667 Long position 6.90%

EREA

i)



Note:

(1) Ms. Chen Cheng is the spouse of Mr. Yu Huang. Therefore, Ms.
Chen Cheng is deemed to be interested in all the Shares that Mr.
Yu Huang is interested in for the purpose of the SFO.

(2) Motivational Mathematics Limited is owned as to 100% by Ms.
Ng Mo Sum, who is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Motivational Mathematics Limited for the purpose of the
SFO.

(3) Mr. Wu Shupeng is the spouse of Ms. Ng Mo Sum. Therefore,
Mr. Wu Shupeng is deemed to be interested in all the Shares that
Ms. Ng Mo Sum is interested in for the purpose of the SFO.

(4)  Charming Flair Limited is owned as to 100% by Mr. Cai
Fengguang, who is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
held by Charming Flair Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section headed “Directors’
and Chief Executive's Interests and Short Positions in the
Shares, the Underlying Shares or Debentures” above, had
notified the Company of an interest or short position in the
Shares, underlying Shares or debenture of the Company that
was required to be recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.
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Major Customers and Suppliers

During FY2020, so far as the Company is aware, the aggregate
revenue attributable to the five largest customers and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 41% (2019: 39%) and 11%
(2019: 18%), respectively, of the Group's total revenue for FY2020.
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 59% (2019: 49%) of the Group’s total purchase for
FY2020 and the purchase from the largest supplier included therein
amounted to approximately 20% (2019: 21%), respectively, of the
Group's total purchase for FY2020.

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, or any
of their close associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) or
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital), had any
beneficial interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers
during FY2020.

Directors

The Directors during FY2020 and up to the date of this annual report
were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Huang (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Pui Lik Leung Kenny
Mr. NiYanlong

Non-executive Director

Ms. Zheng Jingyun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. He Weidong (Appointed with effect from 13 February 2020)

Ms. Liu Man (Appointed with effect from 13 February 2020)

Ms. Zhao Weiwei (Appointed with effect from 13 February 2020)

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles, Mr. Ni Yanlong,
Ms. Zheng Jingyun and Ms. Zhao Weiwei shall retire by rotation at
the next annual general meeting and eligible for re-election.

Information regarding Directors’ emoluments is set out in note 12 to
the consolidated financial statements.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Changes in
Information of Directors

Brief biographical details of the Directors including the changes in
the Directors’ information if any subsequent to the interim report are
included in the biographical details as set out on pages 30 to 34 of
this annual report.

Directors’ Services Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date and will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by the Company or the Director or the Director has not
been re-elected as a Director or has been removed by Shareholders
at any of its general meeting or is disqualified from acting as a
Director in accordance with the Articles. Each non-executive Director
and independent non-executive Director was appointed under a letter
of appointment for a fixed term of three years unless terminated by
the Company or the Director in accordance with the terms as set out
in the letter of appointment.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company has or is proposed to have a
service agreement with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than the statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions, Arrangements,
Contracts of Significance

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transactions, arrangements
and contracts of significance in relation to the Group's business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which the Director or a connected entity of the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted as at, or at
any time during FY2020.
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Controlling Shareholders’ Interests

No contract of significance has been entered into between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during FY2020.

Emoluments of the Directors and Five Highest Paid
Individuals

Details of the emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in note 12 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Emolument Policy

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group's
emolument policy and structure for making recommendation to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to
all Directors, senior management and general staff of the Group.
The remunerations of the Directors are determined by reference
to the economic situation, the prevailing market condition, the
responsibilities and duties assumed by each Director as well as their
individual performance.

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme, details of which are
set out in the section headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual
report.

Competing Interests

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of Directors
nor the controlling Shareholder nor any of their respective close
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) that compete or may
compete with the business of the Group and any conflicts of
interests which any such person has or may have with the Group
during FY2020.
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Non-Competition Undertaking

The Company confirms that the non-competition undertaking of Mr.
Yu Huang, Ms. Chen Cheng and Top Synergy Y&C Limited, details of
which were set out in the Prospectus, has been fully complied and
enforced during FY2020. The Board also confirms that there are no
other matters in relation to the aforesaid undertaking which should
be brought to the attention of the Shareholders and the potential
investors of the Company.

Legal Proceedings and Compliance

To the best knowledge of the Directors, as at 31 December 2020,
there were no legal proceedings or claims currently existing, pending
or threatened against any member of the Group that the Directors
consider will have a material adverse effect on the financial conditions
or results of operation of the Group.

During FY2020, the Group's business operations had complied
with applicable laws, rules and regulations in the places where the
Group operates in all material respects save for (i) failure to make
social insurance contributions in full compliance with the Social
Insurance Law of the PRC; (ii) failure to make housing provident
fund contributions in full compliance with the Regulations on the
Administration of Housing Provident Fund of the PRC; and (iii) failure
in completing the (a) environmental impact assessment before
construction; and (b) construction of the matching environmental
protection facilities and the inspection and acceptance formalities
before the operation of a production plant. Please refer to the
subparagraph headed “Non-compliance Incidents” under the
paragraph headed “Legal Proceedings and Compliance” in the section
headed “Business” of the Prospectus.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The following is a list of principal risks and uncertainties that may
affect the business, financial condition, results of operations and
growth prospects of the Company. However, this list is not exhaustive
as there may be other risks and uncertainties resulting from changes
in economic condition and operating environment over time:

1.

Economic and political risk: the Sino-US trade war may further
affect the Group's business, financial conditions and results
of operations; and the continuous outbreak of the contagious
CQOVID-19 in the PRC and worldwide may continue to have
a material adverse effect on the Group’s business, results of
operations, financial condition and prospects.

Business risk: the Group's sale of co-branded products
relies on the popularity and market acceptance of intellectual
properties used in the co-branded products, which depends
largely on the public reception on the car models and the
entertainment characters of the intellectual properties licensors
and the marketing and promotional activities of the intellectual
properties licensors. The Group also does not maintain long
term purchase contracts with most of the Group’s customers,
any disruption or termination of the business relationships with
the major customers or fluctuations in their demand for the
Group's products may have a material adverse effect on the
Group's business, results of operation, financial condition and
prospect.

Compliance risk: Non-compliance with product safety and
laws and regulations may lead to financial loss and reputational
damage. Product safety is the Group’s number one priority. The
Group has robust processes and procedures in place to ensure
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations. Changes in
related laws and regulations may lead to increased compliance
costs.

Financial risk: The Group is exposed to financial risks related
to currency, pricing, credit and liquidity in the normal course of
business. For details of such financial risks, please refer to note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group has developed a risk management and internal control
system to identify current risks and has undertaken necessary
measures to mitigate the risks identified. Details of the Group's risk
management and internal control system are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report of this annual report
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Key Relationship with the Stakeholders

The Company recognises that employees are its valuable assets.
Thus, the Group provides competitive remuneration packages to
attract and motivate the employees, and regularly reviews the
remuneration package of the employees and makes necessary
adjustments to conform to the market standard. For further details
of the benefits of the employees, please refer to the section headed
“Employees and Pension Schemes” in this annual report.

The Group also understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with its business partners to achieve its long-term goals.
Accordingly, the Directors and senior management have kept good
communication, promptly exchanged ideas and shared business
updates with its business partners when appropriate. During FY2020,
there was no material and significant dispute between the Group and
any of its business partners.

Permitted Indemnity Provisions

Every Director shall be entitled under the Articles to be indemnified
out of the assets of the Company against all actions, costs, charges,
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him/her as a Director in
the execution or discharge of his/her duty. The Company has taken
out insurance against the liability and costs associated with defending
any proceedings which may be brought against the Directors since
the Listing Date.

Connected and Related Party Transactions

For FY2020, there were no connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company which require compliance
with any of the reporting, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of material related party transactions undertaken in
the usual course of business of the Group are set out in note 32 to
the consolidated financial statements. However, these transactions
were either exempt from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, or did not fall under the definition of connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

The Shares were first listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on the Listing Date. Neither the Company nor any member of the
Group had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Shares during the
period from the Listing Date and up to 31 December 2020.

Sufficiency of Public Float

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company, at least 25% of the
Company’s issued capital were held by public during the period from
the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.

Auditor

Following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor
of the Company on 11 January 2021, Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited
("Zhonghui Anda”) was appointed as the auditor of the Company on
13 January 2021 to fill the vacancy. Save as disclosed above, there
were no other changes in auditors of the Company during the past
three years.

The consolidated financial statements for FY2020 have been audited
by Zhonghui Anda, who shall retire in the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of Zhonghui Anda
as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance of the Company are set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report.
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Environmental Policy

The Group’'s commitment to protecting the environment is well
reflected by the continuous efforts in promoting green measures and
awareness in its daily business operations. The Group encourages
environmental protection and promotes awareness towards
environmental protection to the employees. The Group reviews
its environmental practices from time to time and will consider
implementing further eco-friendly measures and practices in the
operation of the Group’s businesses and enhancing environmental
sustainability.

Details of the Group’s environmental, social and governance policies
and performance during FY2020 shall be disclosed in a standalone
environmental, social and governance report, which will be published
in due course.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company is incorporated, which oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during FY2020.
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Charitable Donations

During FY2020, charitable and other donations made by the Group
amounted to approximately RMB1,300,000 (FY2019: nil).

Use of Proceeds from Listing

The Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on the Listing Date (i.e. 18 March 2020). The net proceeds
(after deducting related underwriting fees and commissions and
expenses payable in connection with the global offering) raised by the
Company from the Listing and prior to the partial exercise of the over-
allotment option were approximately HK$81.2 million (based on the
final offer price of HK$1.38 per Share). Due to the issue and allotment
of Shares pursuant to the partial exercise of the overallotment option
on 3 April 2020, an additional net proceeds of approximately HK$1.2
million were raised.
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For FY2020, the proceeds were utilised consistent with that disclosed ~RZZ_ZTHWFE - FIEHIERBEER
in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the  E2 [ ARKRFrEIRABEHRIERR] —8H

Prospectus, details of which are set out below: BEMER - SHEWT
Intended use of Amount not yet Expected timing of
net proceeds Amount utilized utilised usage (Note)
FSRIRRE
sHEIfR EE kR RBALHE HEHERRRE (M)
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
(approximate) (approximate) (approximate)
(#9) (#9) (#7)

Funding the planned expansion
of the new production plant
RTEERERERERMES 58.4 323 26.1 By the end of 2021
T —FEA

Maintaining and strengthening

relationship with existing

customers, and acquiring

or investing in downstream

companies
HFUZERREELHBE

DA RSB SR B R T A F) 15.8 1.0 14.8 By the end of 2021

R FRA

General replenishment of

working capital and other

corporate purpose

—RErEEEe R
Hip—RAFIA% 8.2 8.2 — —
Total
st 82.4 415 40.9
Note: The expected timeline for utilising the unutilised proceeds is based [T : BIAARBAAMEFIE 2 BHKEERHER
on the best estimation of the future market conditions made by the RNEBE KRR MIG MR EL 2 & ERE
Group. It may be subject to change based on the current and future i o ZEER LT EERITRARRTISAM
development of market conditions. The unutilised net proceeds as R2BERMEREE - RAREBE - £
stated above remained in the bank accounts of the Group as at the date AR B A FHIBMEREBE R RITIRP
of this report. A e
On behalf of the Board REEFS
Kidztech Holdings Limited HEEZRBRAR
Yu Huang R®E
Chairman TE
Hong Kong, 25 March 2021 BB —F=A=+HAH

53



Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR

ol

ZHONGHUI

To the Shareholders of Kidztech Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kidztech
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 59 to 119, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPAs Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

(i) Trade receivables
Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Group tested the amount of trade receivables for
impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balance of trade receivables of RMB77819,000 as
at 31 December 2020 is material to the consolidated financial

statements. In addition, the Group's impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:
- Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting credit

limits and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the Group's relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
- Assessing ageing of the debts;
- Assessing credit worthiness of the customers;

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements; and

- Checking subsequent settlements from the customers.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for trade
receivables is supported by the available evidence.

B ZBERE
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(i) Inventories
Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the amount of inventory for impairment.
This impairment test is significant to our audit because the
balance of inventory of approximately RMB50,270,000 as at
31 December 2020 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test involves
application of judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the Group's procedures on ordering and holding
of inventory;

- Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;

- Assessing the ageing of the inventory;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the inventory; and
- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the inventory.

We consider that the Group’s impairment test for inventories is
supported by the available evidence.

Other Information

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible
for the other information. The other information comprises all the
information in the Company's annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the
date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover

the other information and we will not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above
when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated
Financial Statements

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. WWe report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

B ZBERE

BERMBZREMBRENES - RFINE
ERNESEMERRIHEZSER - #th
ZEEMEEEE BEAMBTREAKBAE
BB EENERFEEARELE
UFFEERERBRAL -

ESRGAMBRRARENE
£

EXFRAAREEASTMASRMHENES
BT3RS B R B (R RGP B IRER R
ERHEEMPENRAMBHRE - YHE
RBRREFREMBERENFER T FEARK
FF SR ER T 8 B B A HE SRR T RS O 3D
ZHAR -

EREGAMBRRE EFAEHNM &
SEFEKENEE N - WEERIBER THRE
HRFECERBNER  URERFELE
SEHER  BRIFEFAERS BEREBR
A EAMEROERTER

BREMHR B RSN BRERNE
£

BB RSHEAMEHRREBEBES M
FE B BEF S EE AR T B B0 E A 3H AR PR AL ER
SARERE - WEMIHAHMOEROZR
B3R - JfEm RMT (ERER) WS
BANER - RAAAERMAR - R
PRATRE 9 A A AR A AR (A
RESEREARYT - AERRERRKER
& ETRERERBEEENEAETOE
At ER - EAHRLFEREREEHA
SRAR IR AL AT fh HRRF S ERRR 5 - A TETRE
Z LR R S E AT = A e B AR A
P TSMEAE B RRBAR B M S MR RO
FRTE © BB BHSERRA AT R BERX -

o7



Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RGeS

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's
website at: http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards—and-regulations/
standards/auditing—assurance/auditre. This description forms part of
our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Hon Chung

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P05988
Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REBEBERHEMEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE_T-_TF+_A=+—HItFE

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—hEF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
BaE ARET T ARET T
Revenue ek 6 295,913 325,800
Cost of sales SHERKAR (195,750) (203,610)
Gross profit EF 100,163 122,190
Selling expenses SHERX (18,107) (19,999)
Administrative expenses TR (45,031) (52,150)
Net impairment losses on trade 2 S W RIRREESIE S5
receivables (6,823) (4,186)
Other income E AU A 7 11,219 12,202
Profit from operation RERF 41,421 58,057
Finance costs BhE A 10 (8,474) (9,677)
Profit before tax R AT EF 32,947 48,380
Income tax expenses FrS B2 11 (8,804) (12,935)
Profit for the year attributable to RAREBEAFAEERR
the owners of the Company 9 24,143 35,445
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Efh2MH (FE) W
Items that may be reclassified to A EF BRIt EA -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating B GINE & ETEHE L Z 58
foreign operations (2,957) 1,774
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FANHEMEE (BE) KaE
for the year (2,957) 1,774
Total comprehensive income for RATEE AES
the year attributable to the owner FREEWEZEE
of the Company 21,186 37219
Earnings per share BREF
Basic and diluted BEARREE
(RMB cents per share) (BIRARKSD) 14 4.8 8.2
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As at 31 December 2020

R-ZE-ZTF+=-A=+—H
2020 2019
—ECZF —T—hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
BaE ARET T ARET T
Non—current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - = MR AR 15 172,638 134,671
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 36,870 31,630
Intangible assets B EE 17 7199 6,750
Deferred income tax assets BEFSHEE 18 3,536 5,446
Prepayments TBRRIA 21 58,015 47759
278,258 226,256
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 19 50,270 65,060
Trade receivables B 5 W GRIA 20 77,819 60,239
Prepayment and other receivables TR FRIE e M FE IR 21 130,740 55,520
Restricted cash 2R IR 22 1,035 1,018
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 22 132,424 116,629
392,288 298,466
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAMEFRIE 23 56,583 51,144
Amount due to a related company JE A — I RAES A R FRIE 24 962 -
Contract liabilities BHBE 955 738
License fee payable JE RS 25 3,651 2,735
Bank and other borrowings RITREMER 26 155,890 142,728
Lease liabilities HEEE 27 2,671 2,546
Current income tax liabilities BNEfFTS B E 15,139 16,655
235,851 216,546
Net current assets REBEEFE 156,437 81,920
Total assets less current liabilities EEABRASAE 434,695 308,176
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As at 31 December 2020
RZB-_ZF+-A=+—H

2020 2019
—ECZF —E—hEF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B =E ARET T ARET T
Non—current liabilities FRBEE
Deferred revenue EEW 2= 1,747 2,705
Deferred tax liabilities BETRIEAE 18 2,487 2,534
Lease liabilities HEBE 27 5,320 186
License fee payable eSS 25 1,599 1,854
11,153 7279
NET ASSETS EEFE 423,542 300,897
Capital and reserves EXRf#E
Share capital &N 28 467 70
Reserves (e 423,075 300,827
TOTAL EQUITY e 4R 423,542 300,897
FOENNOEMGEVBHENR T —_—

The consolidated financial statements on pages 59 to 119 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
25 March 2021 and are signed on its behalf by:

Yu Huang
Director

EF

—_— =

FoA-thREESSIERIRERT
TR TINEERRESEHRE

Ni Yanlong

fRERE

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERSEBR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE-_Z-_ZF+-_A=+—HLFE

Foreign
currency
Share  Share Statutory  Capital translation ~ Merger Retained
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve eamings Total
eag
Ba BOEE ek GARE  BE SHER REEN &
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARMTR ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARMTZ ARNTR ARETZ ARNTR

At1 January 2019 RZE-nE-A-A - - 095 2757 (165) (22103 101,702 366,181

Total comprefensive income for the year EREENGEE - = = - T - BMb 3719
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTTTRE - - 3559 - - - (3559 -
Cash dividends paid to the then shareholders of a subsidiary RNBARERRALRERS - - - - - - (1014000 (101,400)
Shares issued pursuant to the reorganisation REEALTHRG 10 - - (70 = = = =
Deemed distrbution to the then shareholders of a subsidiary RIENNBATERRAD K - - N R 4] - - N R ]
At 31 December 2019 R=E-NE+ZA=1-H 10 - 1453% 214598 1609 (22103) 32,188 300,897
At 1 January 2020 R-Z-FF-F-A 70 - 14535 274598 1609 (22103) 32,188 300,897
Total comprehensive income for the year ERRENGEE - - - - %) - MM 2118
Transfer to statutory reserve EREERE - - 4% - - - (4639) -
Capitalisation issue BN 316 - - (3) - - - -
Issue of shares under the Listing RELTEARN 81 MBI - - - - - M8
Listing expenses included in share premium STARGEEN (R - (10,159) - - - - - (10159)
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-FF+-A=1-H 467 101378 19174 204282 (1,348) (22103) 51692 423542

62



ZECTFER HLEERERATE
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RERERER

For The Year Ended 31 December 2020

BE_Z_ZFt_A=1t—RALHFE

2020 2019
—ECZF — N
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities K& EEFTEBELRE
Profit before tax B 5t A A 32,947 48,380
Adjustments for: R
Depreciation of property, VI - BB R REITE
plant and equipment 16,461 12,779
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 4,650 5,101
Amortisation of intangible assets B AERE 4,876 4,867
Net impairment losses on B S W IE R E R 558
trade receivables 6,823 4,186
Impairment losses of mould R A RS E e 18
and machinery 269 2,568
Reversal of provision of inventory FERERD - (78)
Interest income FESA (1,197) (1,5673)
Finance costs BF TG R AR 8,474 9,677
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEMB AR AR - (4,804)
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BER
plant and equipment AR EsE 15 =
Amortisation of deferred revenue RN a B8R (958) (985)
Operating cash flows before working ~ ZE&ESEHFNLELERERE
capital changes 72,360 80,118
Change in license fee payables FESEEEEE) (5,057) (4,734)
Change in inventory GFEEE) 14,790 (33,770)
Change in contract liabilities BHBEE ZEU 217 104
Change in trade receivables B 5 W GRIA (23,494) 24,138
Change in prepayments and SEUNE? Iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁf’ﬂﬁl RIHE )
other receivables (70,594) (5,324)
Change in trade and other payables B 5 REMERRK “@5 4,781 5,536
Change in amount due to a related FEfS — BB A R ZIRE H)
company 962 -
Cash (used in)/generated from K (Frm) /iR E
operations (6,035) 66,068
Income tax paid B ATSH (8,452) (3,520)
Net cash (used in)/generated from ST (FrA)
operating activities Fr8R&FE (14,487) 62,548
Cash flows from investing activities RETEFFEBHELSHE
Purchase of property, plant and BEYX  BE RE&E
equipment (54,847) (28,275)
Purchase of intangible assets BEEFEE - (86)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - WE R RAESRIE
plant and equipment 53 -
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary i &EMIEB A &5 HIE - 33,000
Change in prepayments TESRIEE B (10,256) (27.811)
Interest received EHFILE 1,197 1,573
Change in restricted cash SR FI3R & B ED (17) (18)
Net cash used in investing activities REEZBFTHRESFE (63,870) (21,617)

63



Kidztech Holdings Limited Annual Report 2020

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

ll‘/_\ /E\I IE' ﬁ\;ﬁ% 13«%

For The Year Ended 31 December 2020
HE—_Z-_TZF+-A=t+—HILEE

2020 2019
—E-EHF —NE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARET T
Cash flows from financing activities BEEEFFESHESHE
Proceeds from the Issue of shares RAR_E TR TAR (D FTIS 5UE
under the Listing 111,618 -
Payment for listing expenses EMRESAAR (14,785) (2,308)
Proceeds from borrowings &S 5RIE 119,061 174,343
Repayment of borrowings BEER (105,865) (171,804)
Interest paid EfTAE (7.811) (9,133)
Principal and interest element HENROEE RFIEHD
of lease payments (4,268) (4,237)
Cash dividend paid to the then RBARERKRESMIREKRS
shareholders of a subsidiary - (101,400)
Net cash generated from/(used in)  BEFEFTE  (FTH) RE&FE
financing activities 97,950 (114,539)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BE&RBEELSZEY
cash equivalents #hn, (Rd) BE 19,593 (73,608)
Cash and cash equivalents at FONRERREEEY
beginning of year 116,629 188,634
Effect of changes in foreign HNETE RE B R o &
exchange rate (3,798) 1,603
Cash and cash equivalents at FREASRRESEEY
end of year 132,424 116,629
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents &R 3B & ZEY DT
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 4 132,424 116,629
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

General information

Kidztech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 25 October 2019 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The Company's shares were listed on the Main
Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 18 March 2020.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together, “the Group”) are principally engaged in
manufacturing and sales of toys. The principal activities of its
subsidiaries are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Adoption of new and revised Hong Kong
financial reporting standards

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “"HKICPA") that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2020. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new
and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
financial statements and amounts reported for the current year
and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The application of these
new HKFRSs will not have material impact on the financial
statements of the Group.

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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Significant accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA, and the applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of key assumptions
and estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgments in the process of applying the accounting policies.
The areas involving critical judgments and areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to these consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31
December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. The Group has power over an entity when the
Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to direct
the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has control. A potential voting
right is considered only if the holder has the practical ability to
exercise that right.
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ZECTFER HLEERERATE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the
date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in
a loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The functional
currency of the operating subsidiaries incorporated
in Hong Kong is United States dollers (“USD"), while
the functional currency of the other subsidiaries of the
Group is Renminbi (“RMB"). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the functional
currency of the Company and the operating subsidiaries
and the Group’s presentation currency.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

68

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using the
exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies
are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this
translation policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company's presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in
which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the foreign currency translation reserve.
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ZECTFER HLEERERATE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c) Translation on consolidation (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and
of borrowings are recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve. WWhen a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign entity and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. Property,
plant and equipment are carried at costs less subsequent
depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
recognised in profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives are as follows:

Buildings 30-35 years
Leasehold improvements 2-5 years
Mould and machinery 3-10 years
Motor vehicles 3-10 years
Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending installation, and
is stated at cost less impairment losses. Depreciation begins
when the relevant assets are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Leases
The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use
by the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation
of right-of-use assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

2% - 3%
50%
25% - 33%

LLand use right
Buildings
Motor vehicles

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease
payments prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs.
Lease liabilities include the net present value of the lease
payments discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease if that rate can be determined, or otherwise the Group's
incremental borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease term so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the lease liability.
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ZECTFER HLEERERATE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessee (Continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are
leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets are assets of value below US$5,000.

The Group as lessor

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all the
risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for
as operating leases. Rental income from operating leases is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.

Intangible assets
(a) Trademarks

Trademarks are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 5 years.

(b) Software

Acquired computer softwares are capitalised on the basis
of costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. Softwares are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of 3-5 years.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)
(c) License rights

License rights are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses. They are initially measured at the fair value of the
consideration given to acquire the license at the time of
the acquisition, which represents the capitalised present
values of the fixed minimum payment to be made upon
commencement of the license contract and in subsequent
years.

The Group amortises intangible assets with limited useful
lives of 3 to 5 years for trademarks and software and over
the terms of the license right contracts of 1 to 3 years
using straight-line method.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense
in the period in which it is incurred. An internally generated
intangible asset arising from the Group’s development project
(relating to the design and developing of new or improved utility
models and utility patents) are recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

- An asset is created that can be identified (such as
software and new processes);

- It is probable that the asset created will generate future
economic benefits; and

- The development cost of the asset can be measured
reliably.

Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of one to five years. Where no internally generated
intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.
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ZECTFER HLEERERATE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
assets; or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not
retained control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial
asset, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the sum of the consideration received is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a
contract whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
timeframe established by the market concerned, and are initially
recognised at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction
costs except in the case of investments at fair value through
profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

- the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less loss allowance for expected
credit losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses on financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit
losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the
respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the
loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to
the expected credit losses that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of that financial instrument
(“lifetime expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or
if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the
loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal
to the portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents
the expected credit losses that result from default events on
that financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the
loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and short-
term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant
risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an
equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any
contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would
be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in
a contract with a customer with reference to the customary
business practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf
of third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to
a customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the
laws that apply to that contract, a performance obligation can
be satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance
obligation is satisfied over time if:

(@)  the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group's performance;

(b) the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the product or service.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Other income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method.

Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits and accumulating sick leave that are expected to
be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
year in which the employees render the related service
are recognised in respect of employees’ services up to
the end of the reporting year and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are
settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the statement of financial position.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and
employees are calculated as a percentage of employees’
basic salaries. The retirement benefit scheme cost
charged in profit or loss represents contributions payable
by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs and involves the payment of
termination benefits.

Housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurances

Employees of the group companies in the PRC are
entitled to participate in various government supervised
housing funds, medical insurance and other employee
social insurance plan. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these funds based on certain percentages of the
salaries of the employees, subject to certain ceiling. The
Group's liability in respect of these funds is limited to the
contributions payable in each year.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(e) Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as
a liability when the Group has a present contractual or
constructive obligation as a result of services rendered by
employees and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be
made.

Share-based payments

The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to
certain employees. Equity-settled share-based payments are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-
based vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the
date of grant. The fair value determined at the grant date of
the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's
estimate of shares that will eventually vest and adjusted for the
effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

The Group also provides employees with the ability to purchase
the Company’s ordinary shares at a discount to the current
market value. The Group records an expense, based on the fair
value of the discount related to shares expected to vest (taking
in account the post vesting transfer restrictions), on a straight-
line basis over the vesting period.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned
on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that
asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the
borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the Group that
are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings made
specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them with
the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Repayment of a grant related to income is applied first against
any unamortised deferred income set up in respect of the grant.
To the extent that the repayment exceeds any such deferred
income, or where no deferred income exists, the repayment
is recognised immediately in profit or loss. Repayment of a
grant related to an asset is recorded by increasing the carrying
amount of the asset or reducing the deferred income by the
amount repayable. The cumulative additional depreciation that
would have been recognised in profit or loss to date in the
absence of the grant is recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability
for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences,
unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes

levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company.
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3. Significant accounting policies (Continued)
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Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of
the same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group. If the Group is itself such
a plan, the sponsoring employers are also related to
the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Company or to a parent of the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purpose of allocating
resources and assessing the performance of the Group's
various lines of business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not
individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority
of these criteria.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and other intangible assets
except deferred income tax asset, investments, inventories
and receivables, to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset.
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Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Impairment of assets (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation
or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss,
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.
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ZECTFER HLEERERATE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting policies (Continued)

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the financial statements. Events after the reporting
period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements when material.

Critical judgements and key estimates

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual
values and related depreciation charges for the Group’s
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based
on the historical experience of the actual useful lives
and residual values of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group will revise the
depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values
are different to those previously estimated, or it will write-
off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold.
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4. Critical judgements and key estimates
(Continued)
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the
assets exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is determined with reference to the present value
of estimated future cash flows. Where the future cash
flows are less than expected or there are unfavourable
events and change in facts and circumstance which
result in revision of future estimate cash flows, a material
impairment loss may arise.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of
the trade and other receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each
debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year
in which such estimate has been changed.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and selling expense. These
estimates are based on the current market condition and
the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. It could change significantly
as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions. The Group will reassess the estimates by the end
of each reporting period.
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ZECTFER HLEERERATE

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest
rate risk. The Group's overall risk management programme
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group's financial
performance.

(a)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk
as most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities
are principally denominated in the functional currencies
of the Group entities of Hong Kong dollars (“HKD")
and RMB. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

At 31 December 2020, if the RMB had weakened 5
per cent against the USD with all other variables held
constant, consolidated profit after tax for the year would
have been RMB489,000 (2019: RMB851,000) lower,
arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange loss on
trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and
license fee payables denominated in USD. If the RMB had
strengthened 5 per cent against the USD with all other
variables held constant, consolidated profit after tax for the
year would have been RMB489,000 (2019: RMB851,000)
higher, arising mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
gain on trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and license fee payables denominated in USD.
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5. Financial risk management (Continued)
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(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of the cash and bank balances,
restricted cash, trade receivables and other receivables
included in the statement of financial position represents
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
the Group's financial assets.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk.

It has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The credit risk on cash and bank balances and restricted
cash is limited because the counterparties are banks with
high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating
agencies.

The Group considers whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period by comparing the
risk of a default occurring as at the reporting date with
the risk of default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-
looking information. Especially the following information is
used:

- internal credit rating;

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;and

- significant changes in the expected performance
and behaviour of the borrower, including changes in
the payment status of borrowers.

5. MBEBREE (&)

(b)

EERER

SFAMBARRRNRE KIRTT
mER - XRHIRE  EHRWK
FROR B H At 8 R TR B R T B
EAKERASENESREE
FrE S E=EERR

AEEYEEXNETHEER

(G

an o
2

AEBECDHIEBRERALE
BEEECENEPETHE -

RE RIRITHERIAR R HIR
ENEERBRER - AR
HFTRARBEREEFEKE
BT HEEFRHRT

AEEEBLRSBEAENT
= BB RN R R ER Y
$ TR A HIAE DB - LT
EEBEENEERBATR
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e AEEEEEFEAER
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5. Financial risk management (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor
is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual
payment. A default on a financial asset is when the
counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 60
days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery, such as a debtor
failing to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.
The Group normally categorises a receivable for write off
when a debtor fails to make contractual payments greater
than 360 days past due. Where loans or receivables have
been written off, the Group, if practicable and economical,
continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to
recover the receivable due.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows,
of the Group's financial liabilities is as follows:

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

5. MBEREE (&)

(b)

(c)

=EER ()

W B AR EL & #0143 a
H#2@30 A - Bl EERR
ANIEIEI - EHFHEERA
R EIHARF 60 B A X A 3R
B AlemEELRELY -

TRIEERSEBBESELRE
(BlanE RS A R B AR SR B AR
BHGED) R EEBHA
KB EA1% 360 B RAEBTTA 4
N AEEBTSMEER
U FRIE o 8 SRk fE U FRIE
B AIASE (EEEA
ARFAESERZNBRT)
f 15 FREN 58 1 1T B ok Bl U 1= B
HApE I R IE o

mENE TR

AREBWRESTEHERER
RIEMRBERF K - AR
R RR TR meREE
HERBARSESFER °

AEBETHEENZHBERER
FHIRBSREDMEAT

Total contractual undiscounted cash flow

BENFURRERE
Carrying Less than Between Between
amounts 1year 1and2years 2and>5 years Total
REE SR-F -ZmER  ZELER @t
b 23 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2020 TZA=1-H ARBTT ARMTR ARBTR ARMTRT AR%TR
Bank and other borrowings FAREMER 155,890 130,023 16,586 18,181 164,790
Trade and other payables B 5 REAMENTIE
(excluding tax payables and (T BRI R
payroll payable) ERTE) 42,975 42,975 - - 42,975
Lease liabilities HEaR 7991 3,159 5,965 - 9,124
License fee payable EREES 5,250 4,033 1,707 - 5,740
Amount due to a related company B —FE% AT 962 962 - - 962
213,068 181,152 24,258 18,181 223,591
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5. Financial risk management (Continued)

90

(c)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

5. MBEBREE (&)

(c)

mEEZER (B)

Total contractual undiscounted cash flow

BENFHEESHE
Carrying Less than Between Between
amounts 1year 1and2years 2andb5 years Total
RAEE SR-F -EWMER ZZIER b
“E-RE RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
31 December 2019 +ZA=1-H ARBTT ARETR ARMTz ARETz AR%T:x
Bank and other borrowings RIREMER 142,728 134,227 7473 7324 149,024
Trade and other payables & S REMENTIE
(excluding tax payables and (T eREEMATHZTR
payroll payable) ERTE) 44,233 44,233 - - 44,233
Lease liabilities HERE 2,732 2,622 187 - 2,809
License fee payable JEfTEE 4,589 2,979 2,148 177 5,304
194,282 184,061 9,808 7501 201,370
Interest rate risk (d) =R

The Group's exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its
bank deposits and bank borrowings. These deposits and
borrowings bear interests at variable rates varied with the
then prevailing market condition.

As at 31 December 2020, if the interest rate on cash at
banks and borrowings increased/decreased by 0.5% with
all other variables held constant, the Group's post-tax
profits for the year would have been RMB107000 higher/
lower (31 December 2019: RMB186,000 higher/lower)
mainly as a result of increase in interest income from cash
at bank and increase in interest expense from borrowings
with variable rates.

The Group has not entered into any interest rate swaps to
hedge its exposure to interest rate risks.

AR ER B RO R 2 L 2R B S LR
TERRBITER - ZEFK
RAEFRBEERFRITH SN
HF BRI RETR -

RZE_ZEF+_A=+—
B @ HIRITIR S R A8 A = 8
hn,/#A0.5% - A B A
BREEFTE  XEEFR
B 1% s FAG 15 0, SR AR
#1070007T (ZE—NLF+=
A=+—8:#i BRIPAR
¥ 186,0007T) © £ EHRIRTT
I8 & 80 F) BRI 00 K2 % B A
KEFRAOF B I ATER

7N 5 [ 3 % 5T S AEfA] A 45 B
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5. Financial risk management (Continued) 5. MEEKRER (&)
(e) Fair values e) AY¥E
The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets R ERE B 75 AR 5L 3R AT I B A 2R

and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated SEeREERERARNK
statement of financial position approximate their HEHEEXENATERS °
respective fair values.

RERIE D <RI A

AEBZZEN BT ARR

(f) Financial instruments by category ()

The carrying amounts of each of the category of the

Group's financial instruments at the end of the reporting EHRCBREERT -
period are as follows:
2020 2019
—EEF —E—N4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Financial assets SMEE
Financial assets at IR ATRN S ME E
amortised cost (BRERERREEEY)
(including cash and
cash equivalents) 232,729 185,712
Financial liabilities Y =R
Financial liabilities at R ATRN S A E
amortised cost 213,068 194,282
6. Revenue W =
2020 2019
—EEF —E—N4F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T
Sales of toy cars SHEEE 290,515 325,800
Sales of anti-epidemic products  $4&R7Z 5,398 -
295,913 325,800
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6. Revenue (Continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers:

6.

W (%)

REXFPRHMKEE DT

Segment CarToys
2 EB BHiE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Geographical markets & 35
Mainland China H B A3, 194,090 157,430
Out of Mainland China A B AT A S 101,823 168,370
Total @t 295,913 325,800
Major products FEEM
Smart toy vehicles EReER 185,762 209,584
Smart interactive toys BREE N ITA 27,222 28,459
Traditional toys (TR, 77531 84,697
Smart hardware EEERE(F - 3,060
Anti-epidemic products Fh% F o 5,398 -
Total st 295,913 325,800
Timing of revenue recognition FEFEUN S AR
At a point in time AR —Fr % 295,913 325,800
Sales of toy cars and anti-epidemic products SuEEEE RS B

The Group sells toy cars and anti-epidemic products to the
customers. Sales of a contract are recognised when control
of the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and the
customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

92

AEBEREFHEEERRRm -
BRHERERZEHESE (WEMR
ZNFER) BXERETEEN
FERPEMEMNEFPERSERN
ETEFTAERER °



—ToTER  FLEERBREAQAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

Other income H A
2020 2019
kel 323 —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBFIT
Interest income FBUA 1,197 1,573
Government grants BT ARG 6,798 5,153
Exchange gains ER G 2,935 =
Rental income HEWA - 464
Gains on disposal of a subsidiary H%&—EHB A AUz - 4,804
Others Hth 289 208
1,219 12,202

Segment information DEBE R

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and sales
of toy cars. Management reviews the operating results of the
business as one operating segment to make decisions about
resources to be allocated. Therefore, the executive directors of
the Company regard that there is only one operating segment
which is used to make strategic decisions. Revenue and profit
before income tax are the measures reported to the executive
directors of the Company for the purpose of resources
allocation and performance assessment.

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as those described in note 3 to the financial statements.
Segment non-current assets do not include financial
instruments and deferred tax assets.

ARET2UEEREENHE - &
BEENERRLEXRERSERR
—EEEDER - MIFHEIRD ECAYR
el ARFATEERA &
B AR EH R IR ENEED
*B o Yozs MR TS L AT 27 T B IR
DEMKRBNET2H T ARRNT
EFMEE -

£ D B R BUR BB A IR MR
3FTiiE—B - DEERBEETE
FemTARELEHEEE

Geographical information HIRAL B
Revenue Non-current assets
W FEREEE
2020 2019 2020 2019
—?— E :%7j—|4$ —7—7ﬂ£ 7%&
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARET T ARET T ARET T
Mainland China s Bt 194,090 157430 269,966 217,423
Out of Mainland China o [ g LA S 101,823 168,370 4,756 3,387
295,913 325,800 274,722 220,810
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8. Segment information (Continued) 8. ZHEHR (&)
Revenue from major customers REFERPHKE
2020 2019
—E-EHE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETTT
Customer A BEFEA 33,265 N/A* g *
Customer B %FB 31,368 N/A* @ *
Customer C =FEC N/A* i A * 58,644
* The customer contributed less than 10% of total revenue during B PZRFEBE_Z—NEFR=-ZT_F
the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2020. FH+-—A=+—HILFEHBIZ
HEMTRE 10% °
9. Profit for the year 9. FREF
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Raw materials and goods used BB REME R EY) 117,628 137427
Staff costs (including BIRA (RIEESHE)
directors’emoluments)
— Salaries, bonus and allowance - #r& - fEAL K ERE 45,398 49,526
— Retirement benefits scheme — RNEFIFT IR
contributions 1,130 1,245
Depreciation of property, plant Y% - BERREREAEEERE
and equipment, right-of-use P IE TG Fis
assets and amortisation
expenses of trademark and
software 21,422 18,221
Rovyalty expenses (a) BRERE 9,743 16,471
Listing expenses for the Listing ~ _EMHIX 12,450 16,365
Subcontracting charges HBEER 6,955 5,150
Freight charge and BEBEEHRT
transportation expenses 3,328 4,765
Auditor’s remuneration for 1% B B HE AL E A% AR TS A 357 M
audit services 1,600 2,526
(a)  Royalty expenses comprised amortisation of license rights @) BREEBRXBFHEEBEE_Z_-Z
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of RMB4,565,000 (2019: RMB4,526,000) and variable
license payments of RMB5,178,000 for the year ended 31
December 2020 (2019: RMB11,945,000).
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1.

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

10. @E R
2020 2019
—E-BF —ENF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETTT

Interest expenses on TEFHHNERX
bank borrowings

Interest expenses on E A ERREIF S5 2
other borrowings

Interest expenses on HEBEF SR
lease liabilities

Interest expenses on FERRAEERHE RS2
license fee payables

Others EAh

Income tax expenses

5,342 7417
2,039 1,351
367 288
296 256
430 365
8,474 9,677
11. Fi8HiBx
2020 2019
—E-sF —F—hE
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETTT

Current tax — Hong Kong BEATHIE - BABRSH
Profits tax
— Provision for the year - FEAE

Current tax — PRC Enterprise BREATHIE — AR B FT1SER
Income Tax

— Provision for the year - FNEE

Deferred income tax (note 18) FIEFTISEL (F17E18)

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of Cayman lIslands and, accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax. Under the current laws of the
British Virgin Islands (“BVI"), entities incorporated in BVI are not
subject to income tax.

202 3,295
6,759 10,735
1,843 (1,095)
8,804 12,935

ARBRBRASEE ARNEANFSE
SEMARLAEREERAF - Bt
ERCBMFEREMEN - RIER
BRzES ((REBEXES]) BA
HERR - RRB R X R SR M ILEY
EREEBGMPTEN
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1.

96

Income tax expenses (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group is eligible
to nominate one Hong Kong incorporated entity in the Group,
namely Kidztech Toys Manufacturing Limited (“Kidztech HK"),
to be taxed at the two tiered profits tax rates, whereby profits
tax will be chargeable on the first HKD2,000,000 of assessable
profits at 8.25% and assessable profits above this threshold
will be subject to a rate of 16.5% (2019: same). Hong Kong
profits tax of the other Hong Kong incorporated group entities
has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated
assessable profits.

Pursuant to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law ("EIT Law"),
the EIT rate for domestic enterprises and foreign invested
enterprises is 25%. Kidztech (Guangdong) Intelligent Technology
Co., Ltd. (“Kidztech Intelligent’ formerly known as Kidztech
Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd), the Group's operating subsidiary
in the PRC, was awarded the National High-tech Enterprise
Certificate which is effective for three years commencing on
1 January 2020 with applicable income tax rate being 15% for
the years from 2020 to 2022. All the other PRC entities of the
Group are subject to EIT at a rate of 25%.

The reconciliation between the income tax and the loss before
tax is as follows:

1.

Frigwimx ()

REE=—Z-_TF+=-A=+—H1t
FE - AEBAERRER —EAEE
REBEME I HELE (BaLED
BEIEFARAR ([BFFLTED) &
MARFN SRR EHAT R HEit -
2,000,000 7 7T /9 i &1 it & 7 8 1%
8.25% MBI L MBIE - ML Z L
PR A & &R B & T 1§ 12 16.5% H Fit =&
(ZZ—NF : 8R) BRI - Hfth
REBEME N EEEEN(ETE
RIRBADIZ16.56% W KRR B
FIS T B A -

BIBRBRPEMESRE ([REMS
TEl) - R RINE R ERFTE
FRE A 25% o ANEE R B EERN I
BRAFTE (ER) SefEER
AEl ([FLESE] BT ES
BEREROHERAR) BERTRERS
R EEFE  RZZTZTF—A
—HBH=FIEAR  RZTZZTF
ET - _FFEMNERMEHES
15% ° AEBFTAHMAEEEAE
25% HFL BN ZEFTIS L ©

PRAST MR T AT BT IR RO SRR AA T -

2020 2019
—EC-EF —E-hF
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET AREBT T
Profit before income tax BRET1S R AT & 32,947 48,380
Calculated at applicable tax rate  IZEAT KT E 5,346 10,321
Expenses not deductible for AAHIBRFIER
tax purpose 4,155 4,231
Additional deduction on research  Aff3 5 2 RIRESNOBR
and development expenses (860) (1,631)
Tax losses for which no deferred  BEEIEEFTISH A EERER
income tax asset was KR IBE1E
recognised 163 14
Income tax expense for the year FRAFTEH X 8,804 12,935
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12. Directors’ and five highest paid individual

12. EERAARFHNHES A LM

emoluments o
The emoluments of each director were as follows: BEZHNEFMAT
Salaries and Contribution to
Fee other benefits pension scheme Total
e FERHMER BRSFEIRR @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Executive directors HTES
Mr. NiYanlong REELE - 192 5 197
Mr. Pui Lik Leung BRmEE - 8N 18 889
Mr. Yu Huang RELE - 240 6 246
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Zheng Jingyun BEELL - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. He Weidong EREE 99 - - 99
Ms. Liu Man e 99 - - 99
Ms. Zhao Weiwei HERTL 99 - - 99
Total for the year ended SE i
31 December 2020 =T-BILFESH 297 1,303 2 1,629
Executive directors HTES
Mr. NiYanlong REELE - 150 b 155
Mr. Pui Lik Leung BRlmtsE - 858 17 875
Mr. Yu Huang RELE - 246 b 251
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Zheng Jingyun BEERL - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUEHTES
directors
Mr. He Weidong fERLE 55 - - 55
Ms. Liu Man 280t 55 - - 55
Ms. Zhao Weiwei il 55 - - 55
Total for the year ended BEZZ-N41ZA
31 December 2019 =+-HILEE 165 1,254 27 1,446
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12. Directors’ and five highest paid individual

98

emoluments (Continued)
Notes:

1 Mr. Yu and Mr. Pui were appointed as directors of the Company
on 25 October 2019 and were re-designated as executive
directors on 1 November 2019.

2 Mr. Ni Yanlong and Ms. Zheng Jingyun were appointed as
executive and non-executive directors of the Company,
respectively, on 1 November 2019.

8 Mr. He Weidong, Ms. Liu Man and Ms. Zhao Weiwei were
appointed as the independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 13 February 2020.

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 1 director (2019: 1 director) whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments
of the remaining 4 (2019: 4 employees) individuals are set out
below:

12. EERAARFHNHES A LM

% (&)
G

1 REERBEERZT—NEFTH
“TRHBAEZERARRES I
R-ZF-NFt+t—-A—BERER
WiTES -

2 REEEERBFELIN-F
—hFE+—A—BAREZERE
REIMFITRIFITES °

3 AIERLE  ELLRBHERL
TR -_TE—_A+=HERE
BRNRBBMYIENITES °

FR - ARBRAFHESALERE
—REE(CEE —ZEE)
REVEH 10 =2 51 E) 2 AT S AR
BRTOE (ZE-N%F:  OEER)
ATHB S

2020 2019

kel 223 —T-hF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMT T ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits Fre REMER 1,563 1,500
Contribution to pension scheme Bk & T &K 71 67
1,634 1,567

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

FEFFMESREEMSE TS
HENA :

Number of employees

EEAE
2020 2019
—ECEHF —ET—hEF
Emolument band: < S5 [
Nil = HKD1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000/87C 4 4

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the directors or
the highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

HE_Z-_TFR-_ZF-NF+=A
=+—HUEFE AEETERES
SAAERBE - EARMASKIIALRSE
B KBRS E AR EBRLEE -
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14.
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Final dividends

A final dividend of HK$0.018 per share in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2020, amounting to approximately
HK$9,375,948, (equivalent to RMB7,894,548) , to be paid to
the shareholders of the Company whose name appear on the
Company's register of members on 4 June 2021, has been
proposed by the Board of Directors and is subject to approval
by the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company is based on the profit for the year
attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
RMB24,143,000 (2019: RMB35,445,000) and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares of 502,063,000 (2019:
431,600,000), in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share

No diluted earnings per share is presented as the Company did
not have any dilutive potential ordinary shares during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

13.

14.

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

RIS

EECCEEMEE T _TF =
A=+—RALEFERMNKBREZRK
0.018/87T * & #£499,375,948/8 7T (48
BERHARKT78945487T) TRA-E
Z—FXNAMBERSARRAR KRR
ZANEIRRER - EEFFREREREA
AIRERAFERE FHUEEE -

BRAER
BARERE R

RARIER AELERERET THE
RARRBEB ABEFEFABFHAR
#24.143,0007T (ZZE—hF : AR
& 35,445,0007T) RFABEEITE @
P& /9 0 4 - 5 £1502,063,000 f% (=
ZT— L4 : 431,600,000f%) 51& -

Bl ERA
HRAAFHE-_E-_SER-Z

—NEFIEFEY EEEEEEE;
B EIE 25| S RESE AN o
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15. Property, plant and equipment

100

15. Y% - BMERRE

Furniture
Leasehold Mould and Motor and office Construction
Buildings ~ improvement machinery vehicles equipment in progress Total
BER
B BEEE BARER byt HORE fRIR it
RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTL ARETT
Cost 7.3
At1 January 2019 A=3-1E-A-H 30,559 11,151 70546 3389 4,384 34346 154,375
Additions hE = — 13920 253 123 847 373
Fxchange differences EREE - yi) 17 68 - - 108
At 31 December 2019 H=B-NE+2A
and 1 January 2020 =t-HR
5-2E-f-1 30,559 "1 84,483 370 4507 57763 192,196
Additions hE - 6,797 30,782 - k7] 17236 54,847
Disposal e - - (1,036) - (16) - (1,052)
Exchange differences EiZE - (64) (42) (186) (37) - (329)
At 31 December 2020 H-B2%%
tZR=1-H 30,559 17907 114,187 3524 4,486 74,999 245,662
Accumulated depreciation ~ 25TTERHE
and impaiment
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-F-A 2619 5,151 21 1811 3,303 - 42115
Charge for the year ERxi 910 2,764 8444 254 407 - 12779
Impairment e - - 2,568 = = = 2,568
Exchange differences B £8 - ) 13 40 - - 63
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE+28
and 1 January 2020 =t-Bk
E-2E-f-A 3589 1925 40,19 2,105 370 - 57525
Charge for the year ERgH 910 2671 12,390 5 209 - 16,461
Disposal ik - - (984) - - - (984)
mpaiment il - - 2%9 - - - 2%9
Exchange differences ERER - (66) 36) (115) 30) - (247)
At 31 December 2020 W-B2%%
tZA=1-H 4499 10,536 51,835 2,265 3889 - 73,024
Carrying amounts Rk
At 31 December 2020 i 4
tZR=1-H 26,060 3N 62,352 1,259 597 74,999 172,638
At 31 December 2019 R-E-1E
tZA=t-H 26,910 3,249 44287 1,605 197 57763 134,671

As at 31 December 2020, buildings, mould and machinery and
motor vehicles with net book value totalling RMB57,099,000
(31 December 2019: RMB44,568,000) was pledged as collateral

for the Group’s borrowings (Note 26).

R-_E-_ZTF+-_A=+—H " kA
FEAF A AR 57099,0007T (=
E-hFE+-A=+—H: ARK
44,568,0007T) MIETF « KA R
LA R BB 4 HRE A AN SR [ S SR AD IR
i (FEE26) -
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BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

16. Right-of-use assets

Disclosure of lease-related items:

16. FRHEELSE

REHERBER

2020 2019
kel 223 —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT

At 31 December: R+=—A=+-—8

Right-of-use assets FEREEE

— Land use rights — THb{E A 28,181 29,043
— Buildings —1BF 5,716 2,587
— Motor vehicles — 2,973 —
36,870 31,630

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of
the Group's lease liabilities is as follows:

ERAMRASRENAKERER

BB DO

2020 2019

—EC-EF —E—hEF

RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Less than 1 year D1 3,159 2,622
Between 1 and 2 years 1FE82F 5,965 187
9,124 2,809
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BE_Z_TF+_A=1t—HIFE

16.

102

Right-of-use assets (Continued)

16. ERAEEE (&)

2020 2019
—g-®F -T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Year ended 31 December BE+-A=1+—HLEE
Depreciation charge FREEENEER
of right-of-use assets
— Land use rights — T i AR
— Buildings —BF
— Motor vehicles — )R8
Lease interests HEF B
Expenses related E155 HATH S ABRAR RS2

to short—term leases
Addition of right-of-use assets  HNEFEHEEE
Total cash outflow for leases HEMRES R

The Group leases various land use rights, building and motor
vehicles. Lease agreements are typically made for fixed
periods of 2 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants and the leased assets may not be used as security
for borrowing purposes.

As at 31 December 2020, land use rights with net book value
totalling RMB31,154,000 (31 December 2019: RMB29,043,000)
was pledged as collateral for the Group's borrowings (Note 26).

862 1,363
3,506 3,738
282 =
4,650 5,101
(367) (288)
44 44
9,923 1,607
4,268 4,237

AEBHBELA L ERRE  BFR
RE - HEBRNEEHARBEER2
E5F - MERKTRERIEEHETT
W - B S B FEERR R G
THE R E M IMERI R - MAEE
BENSAFERRZAER®D

RZZEZZF+—A=+—8 " E@A
FEEF /AR 31,154,0007T (=
Z—NF : AR¥29,043,0007T) A9
T R B R E AR E B B
EHm (FizE26) -
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BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

17. Intangible assets 17. BREE
Trademark Software License rights Total
[5]:3 LA HaHE #st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARKETT ARKETT ARETTT

Cost FRAR
At 1 January 2019 R=2-n%-F-8 1,161 385 18,974 20,520
Additions NE — 86 6,469 6,555
Written—off i — — (8,703) (8,703)
Exchange difference [EHER — — (5,057) (5,057)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NEF+=A
and 1 January 2020 =t-8K
—Z-EF¥-H-H 1,161 47 11,683 13,315
Additions E - - 5,582 5,582
Written—off e - - (6,133) (6,133)
Exchange difference BN AR - - 873 873
At 31 December 2020 RZBZBF
+=A=+-H 1,161 471 12,005 13,637
Accumulated amortisation 2B R RERE
and impairment losses
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NF-HA—H 18 186 15,394 15,598
Amortisation for the year FREE 214 127 4,526 4,867
Written—off s — — (8,703) (8,703)
Exchange difference N EHE — — (5,197) (5,197)
At 31 December 2019 R=ZZ-hE+=A
and 1 January 2020 =t-8K
“E"EE-fA—H 232 313 6,020 6,565
Amortisation for the year F R 214 97 4,565 4,876
Written—off s - - (6,133) (6,133)
Exchange difference EHE - - 1,130 1,130
At 31 December 2020 RZZ-ZfF
+=A=+-H 446 410 5,582 6,438
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-EF
+=B=1+-H 715 61 6,423 7199
At 31 December 2019 R-Z-h&
+=A=+—H 929 158 5,663 6,750
During the year ended 31 December 2020, amortisation HE_ZT-_FTF+-_A=+—H1
of RMB311,000 (2019: RMB341,000) was charged to FE . ARE3N1,000L (ZFE—AN
administrative expenses and RMB4,565,000 (2019: & AR¥341,0007T) # st ATT
RMB4,526,000) was charged to cost of sales. B ™ AR#4,565,0005T (=

T—NE: AR#45260007T) &
SR ASHERAN o
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HE-T-_ZHF+-A=1+—HILFE

18. Deferred income tax

104

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets

18. IEIEFTISH

AEBERANTIZELEHARBENE

recognised by the Group. EWT ©
Deferred Fairvalue  Accelerated
Provisions revenue Taxloss  gainsofland  depreciation Total
1k
fifs BERE WEER  ATEWE MEHE fazt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARSI ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2019 R-E-h&—-A—H 1,384 553 1440 (1,570) = 1.807
Credit/lcharge) to profit or loss EREEA/ (BE) B
for the year 1,935 150 (26) (964) — 1,09
Fxchange difference EXEE 10 - - - — 10
At 31 Decemer 2019 R=B-NETZR=1-8
and 1 January 2020 k=2-%%-F-A 3,329 103 1414 (2,534) - 2912
Crediticharge) to profit or loss A/ (MBE) B
for the year (166) (425) 168 47 (1,467) (1,843)
Exchange difference EXEE (20) - - - - (20)
At 31 December 2020 R=Z=8E+ZR=1-8 3143 8 1582 (2487) (1,467) 1,049

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after
offset) for statement of financial position purposes:

AT R B AR 2% P R AR RE AR IR

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax liabilities

EETHIREE
EEFRIRA R

e (RSH1E) D1
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-hEF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT ARET T
3,536 5,446
(2,487) (2,534)
1,049 2,912
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BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

Inventories 19. F&
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
Raw materials R 38,602 50,510
Work in progress R 135 697
Finished goods SRk o 6,548 9,581
Packing materials BEME R EREm
and consumables 5,016 4,303
50,301 65,091
Less: provision R (31) (31)
50,270 65,060
Trade receivables 20. EZRWIE
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hnEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
Trade receivables & S W IE 91,848 68,724
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (14,029) (8,485)
77,819 60,239

The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables,

RERZEZ B2 E 5 KGR

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the years: TEHERER DT :
2020 2019
b —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Less than 30 days LRR30K 25,764 36,291
31 days to 120 days 31 RE 120K 39,033 27942
121 days to 1 year 121 RE—F 19,050 2,283
1 year to 2 years —FEMF 6,845 2,032
More than 2 years BRI 1,156 176
91,848 68,724
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20. Trade receivables (Continued) 20. EZRWFEIE (&)
Reconciliation of loss allowance for trade receivables: B 5 EWGRIE B E R AR R
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBT T
At 1 January m—HA—H 8,485 5,359
Increase in loss allowance FAREEREE N
for the year 6,823 4,186
Amounts written off MiH S5 (1,129) (1,115)
Exchange difference P R ZERE (150) 55
At 31 December ®n+—A=+—H 14,029 8,485
. . . e = e
Trade receivables that are not impaired RABIER B 5 YRR
The Group applies the simplified approach under HKFRS $%Jf§ﬁﬁg‘%ﬂ7fﬁ§&%fgﬁ”%9%
9 “Financial Instrument” to provide for expected credit (T&mITE]) W%ﬁ{bﬁ&:?ﬁﬁﬁg%
losses using the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade Eg”&?mﬁ@hfﬁﬁi\gﬁﬁgﬁéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ%
receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade ﬁﬁﬁ%%}éﬁ};%ﬁ o 2%%%3‘5@%%%
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk BiE - H5REREEREXZER
characteristics and the days past due. The expected credit @ﬁ#ﬁ@&@ﬁﬂ?&\%&%%ﬁ - BHIRE
losses also incorporate forward looking information. BIETESAEEER -
Less than 31 days to 121 days to
30 days 120 days 1year Over 1 year Total
31X2 121%2
PH30K 120% 1% BB1E fazt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2020 RZB-BE+ZA=1-H
Weighted average expected loss rate METIEHEEE 6.83% 10.59% 2265% 4776%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) AESE (AR%TT) 25,764 39,033 19,050 8,001 91,848
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BERE (\RETT) 1,760 4,133 4315 3821 14,029
At 31 December 2019 R=B-AE+ZA=1-A
Weighted average expected loss rate METIEHEER 821% 9.99% 19.91% 100%
Receivable amount (RMB'000) AEEE (ARETT) 36,291 27942 2220 2271 68,724
Loss allowance (RMB'000) BERE (\RETT) 2,981 2791 44 2271 8485
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BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

RARER A EURRIE

2020 2019
—g-®F -—T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Prepayments (note) TafTEaE (i)

Deposits e

Other receivables E b EYRIE

Right to returned goods RERE

Incurred listing expenses to be R _ETHREARLA
capitalised after the Listing BEAEFTRY

Less: non-current portion B IEmENER D

Prepayments for properties, W% - BB KR ERITE R

plant and equipment

Note:

The prepayment represents prepayments made in relation to the
construction of buildings, prepayment for purchases of moulds,
packaging and raw materials.

Restricted bank balances and cash and cash
equivalents

167,304 95,453
8,148 2,574
13,303 1,129
- 910

- 3,213
188,755 103,279
(58,015) (47,759)
130,740 55,520

BiaE
BENFRERETER BERA 8%

KRR A TR FOR -

ZREBTREURBER
RESEY

2020 2019
—ECEF —E—-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBETT

Cash at banks RITHE
Cash on hand FHERE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group placed cash deposit
of approximately RMB1,035,000 (31 December 2019:
RMB1,018,000) with designated bank as collateral for its bank
borrowing. The cash deposit was denominated in RMB, with
maturity of 12 months (31 December 2019: 12 months) and
bore interest at 1.75% per annum (31 December 2019: 1.75%
per annum).

132,114 116,508
310 121
132,424 116,629

R-ZBE-_ZF+_-_A=+—H K&
EREERITEHRESTERHOAR
#1,035,000C (ZE—hE+= A
=t+—H: AE%1,018,0007T) * 1
ABEBTEROERR - BETFRA
ARBIIE - AH12EA8 (ZF—h
F+-A=1+—8:121A8)  &F
B175% it B (ZE—ALE+ = A
=+—H:F8175%) °
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23. Trade and other payables 23. EFRHMEMNRE
2020 2019
—g-8F  —T-NEF
RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Trade payables B SN FIE 19,021 24,892
Accrued other expenses EEAHMAS 12,590 10,666
Accrued listing expenses EEA TR 10,660 6,002
Payroll payable JFEE 1T Bk T 2 B 4,305 4,687
Value-added tax and other ER R A M ENTIE
tax payables 9,303 2,224
Refund liabilities RPBE 704 1,570
Amounts due to minority e D ER R FIR
shareholders — 1,103
56,583 51,144
An aging analysis of the trade payables at the end of the RS RZEEZHHAENE SE
reporting period, based on invoice dates, is as follows: NIRRT
2020 2019
—EZRHE —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARBETT

Less than 30 days LR30K 3,783 4,795
31 days to 120 days 31 RE120K 6,711 6,862
121 days to 1 year 121 KE2—%F 4,851 12,514
1 year to 2 years —FEMF 3,097 595
More than 2 years BB E 579 126
19,021 24,892
24. Amount due to a related company 24. ET—EBEHQRRIE
The amount due to a related company is unsecured, non- B —HEB AR RIBEREER - 2
interest bearing, and had no fixed term of repayment. BN E T E SR AR o
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License fee payable

5. ENKESR

2020 2019
kel 323 —T-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
License fee payable EREEE
— Current — BNER 3,651 2,735
— Non-current — JERNEY 1,599 1,854
5,250 4,589
Bank and other borrowings 26. RITRHEMERK
2020 2019
kel 223 ZT-hF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBFIT
Bank loans IRITER 97,295 92,500
Other borrowings EfbfER 58,595 50,228
155,890 142,728
Analysed as: 20 CINE
Secured BHEHA 155,890 142,728
Unsecured AR - =
155,890 142,728
The borrowings are repayable as follows: BRER MY AR ER ¢
2020 2019
=T=FF —TNF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T T ARBFIT
On demand or within one year RERSNR—FRN 155,890 142,728

Other borrowings include loans from non-bank financial
institutions and loan obtained from a state-owned company to
Kidztech (Shantou) Information Technology Co., Ltd. (“Kidztech
Infotech”), a subsidiary of the Group.

Hib R EEIFRTE BB ER
RBEMETARE—HHER

(I

&_
AaELE OLSE) EEMEAERAR
FLEESRHR]) WER -
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26.

27.

110

Bank and other borrowings (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, certain bank and other borrowings
were secured by:

—  Property, plant and equipment (Note 15) and right-of-use
assets (Note 16);

—  Restricted cash (Note 22); and

—  Personal guarantees provided by Mr. Yu Huang and
Ms. Chen Cheng and certain minority shareholders of the

26. RITREABERK

(&)

RZBE_ZF+-_A=+—H " &fH
HRIT R EAER A N EEEER

Y BB KRG (RE15) &
FAEEE (izE16) :

ERERE (H5E22) 0 R

mRERERRE L AREH
AR D EIRRIBHEEALE

Company. R o
The interest rates per annum at the end of the reporting period WEAREFR R
were as follows:
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-hF
Borrowing (EEN
Fixed-rate & e Flj = 5.17% — 9.10% 5.17% —8.97%
Lease liabilities 27. HEASE
Lease payments Present value of lease payments
HEAR HEMARHE
2020 2019 2020 2019
“ECER —ENF —ECER —ENF
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETFT ARETR AREFT
Within one year —£R 3,159 2,622 2,671 2,546
In the second to fifth years, F_EEAF
inclusive (BEEEMF) 5,965 187 5,320 186
After five years hE% - = - —
9,124 2,809 7991 2,732
Less: Future finance charges B RRBEER (1,133) (77)
Present value of lease liabilites ~ FEMNFEHE 7991 2,732
Less: Amount due for settlement J& : T =fEAR
within 12 months B HRAE R E (2,671) (2,546)
Amount due for settlement after +—1{A A% Z|H/AEE
12 months HI50E 5,320 186
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BE-_Z-_TF+_A=1+—HILFE

28. Share capital 28. A
Number of
Note ordinary shares HKD'000 RMB'000
Mz LERYE THEL AR¥TT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HKD0.001 each &% 0.001 B LA AR
At 31 December 2020 RZZTZRE
+-A=1+-H a 5,000,000,000 5,000 4,470
Issued and fully paid: BRIRAR:
At 25 October 2019 (date RZZ-NE+A=TEA
of incorporation) (AL B ) a 1 - -
Shares issued pursuant RESAETNRA
to the reorganisation b 77,999,999 78 70
At 31 December 2019 R-E-1E
and 1 January 2020 t=B=t-A
k=2-2%-5-H 78,000,000 78 70
Capitalisation issue BAR{Rf c 353,600,000 354 316
Issue of shares under the Listing BELmEIRG
—The listing — W d 88,400,000 88 80
— Over-allotment option — B e e 886,000 1 1
At 31 December 2020 R-BZEF
+ZA=1-H 520,886,000 521 467

On 25 October 2019, the Company was incorporated
in the Cayman lIslands with an authorised share capital
of HKD380,000 dividing into 380,000,000 ordinary
shares of HKD0.001 each. On 13 February 2020, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HKD380,000 dividing into 380,000,000 shares to
HKD5,000,000 dividing into 5,000,000,000 shares of par
value of HKD0.001 each by the creation of an additional
of 4,620,000,000 shares. Upon the incorporation of the
Company, one share was transferred to Keen Pacemaker
Limited (“Keen Pacemaker”), a company incorporated
in BVl and owned by Mr. Pui, an executive director and a
then shareholder of Kidztech Intelligent.

On 15 November 2019, the Company allotted and issued
an aggregate of 77,999,999 shares at par to fifteen BVI
companies owned by the then shareholders of Kidztech
Intelligent for the acquisition of the Listing Business
pursuant to the reorganisation.

(a)

RZZE—hFE+A=+HH"
AARERAESHSTMAT -
& 7E B K 380,000 7T 0 o
/5380,000,000% & % 0.001
BLTHEER R =-F
£ = A+ = B ANAGEE
1 ERREIN4,620,000,0000% %
BAER BHZETRA B
380,000/ JT % 4 380,000,000
f% A% 19 # %= 5,000,000 7T 2
/5,000,000,000i% & % ™ &
0001 BT KRR 1D o AR A FE
MR % 1R DEEET
Keen Pacemaker Limited ([ Keen
Pacemaker]) * 2 A RIREBR
LZEETMAKY - WHRITES
%ﬁté%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%i%

R_ZE—NAE+—A+HAB "
AARIEEERT TES R
ENREHEEN T RREEBRE
TEHEAREBERETAHE
77999,999 & 17 AR IR E
ABUCEE ETEEAS o
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RE-F-FET-AS+-ALEE

28. Share capital (Continued)

(c)  On 18 March 2020, 353,600,000 shares of HKD0.001 each
were allotted and issued at par to the then shareholders
of the Company in proportion to their then shareholdings
as at 13 February 2020 by capitalisation of an amount of
HKD353,600 standing to the debit of the capital reserve

account of the Company

(d) On 18 March 2020, the Company’'s shares were listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and public
offer of a total 88,400,000 shares at an offer price of

HKD1.38 per share.

(e) On 3 April 2020, 886,000 additional shares of HKD1.38
each were allotted and issed to the sole global coordinator

under the exercise of the over—allotment option.

29. Other reserves

(@) The amounts of the Group's reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and the consolidated statement

of changes in equity.

112

28. A (48)

29.

(c)

R-ZT-_ZTHE=F+/\H ' K
REERZZE=ZTF=-_A+=
H &R REAFRLLF - M
NGIRASE o R A
353,600,000 A% & fi% [ {& 0.001
BITRRD - ARNEEARAA
A% 17 5 {8 B &Y 3 AR %8 353,600
BT AR -

RN_ZZE_ZFF=A+/N\H" &K
RENROERBHAER S
BRAF LT, LAHBER
7 7\ 2174851 88,400,000 A% %
- BITERER 138 T °

RZZE=ZTFMA=H ' 886,000
% & 1% 1.38 78 LRI BB AN 15 1R
17 {5 A B8 e AR T 2R R 2 &
B TERERBAA

Hfth {5

(a)

AEENEELCERLEDH
BIZHIREGE 2 EKSE RS
AERBBE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

29. Hftbf#ts ()

Reserves of the Company (b) AN FIHFEE
Share Other Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
RADEE Hitfk 2R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 25 October 2019 R-E-NF
(date of incorporation) THA=t&A
(FMALAR) — — — =
Comprehensive income FEME — — (16,365) (16,365)
Issuance of shares pursuant BEEAETRG
to the reorganisation — 316,347 — 316,347
At 31 December 2019 R-E-NF
and 1 January 2020 +ZA=+-HRk
“E-EE-F—-H - 316,347 (16,365) 299,982
Comprehensive income FEMEG - - (21,089) (21,089)
Other reserve Hit s - (317) - (317)
Issue of shares under the Listing ~ 184& ET47/k 5 111,537 - - 111,537
Listing expenses included ARG B
in share premium Nsila5d (10,159) - - (10,159)
At 31 December 2020 RZBZBE
+=A=t-H 101,378 316,030 (37.454) 379,954
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29. Other reserves (Continued)

114

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the
Group

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

Statutory reserve

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in
the PRC and the Company’s Articles of Association,
companies incorporated in PRC are required to
transfer no less than 10% of their profit after
taxation calculated under PRC accounting standards
and regulations to the statutory reserve fund, until
the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of
their registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can only be used, upon approval by the relevant
authority, to offset previous years’ losses or to
increase the capital of respective companies.

Merger reserve

In preparation for listing of the shares of Kidztech
Intelligent on the National Equities Exchange
and Quotations (“NEEQ"), a reorganisation was
conducted in 2015 among certain group entities.
Such reorganisation resulted in combination of
Kidztech Intelligent and two other group entities
which were majority owned by Mr. Yu and Ms. Chen
Cheng (“Ms. Chen”). The difference between the
consideration paid for the acquisitions and the share
capital of the two group entities were recorded as
merger reserve.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises
all foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

29. Hftbf# s ()
(c) AEERENIEENMA

(i)

(ii)

(iii)
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30. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash 30.

31.

—ToTER  FLEERBREAQAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

flows

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

The following table shows the Group's changes in liabilities

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_TF+_A=1+—HILFE

RERTREBRWEE

MERPELNREE

TREJIAEBEFAREEBELDN

arising from financing activities during the year: B2
Lease
Borrowings liabilities Total
(RN HEEE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARETT AREBT T
At 1 January 2019 R=ZE-hF—HA—H (140,189) (5,015) (145,204)
Changes in cash flows ReEmEE (2,539) 4,237 1,698
Non-cash changes FEIREFE
— Addition of lease liabilities — HE&SEEM = (1,607) (1,607)
— Interest expenses — FBRZ — (288) (288)
— Currency realignment — [N — (59) (59)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZT—N&F
and 1 January 2020 +=A=+—HER
—E-ZEF—H—H (142,728) (2,732) (145,460)
Changes in cash flows Rens® (13,196) 4,268 (8,928)
Non-cash changes FEIR & E)
— Addition of lease liabilities — HEAFEEM — (9,265) (9,265)
— Interest expenses — FBRX - (367) (367)
— Currency realignment — B 34 105 139
At 31 December 2020 R-E_EF
+=A=t+—8 (155,890) (7991) (163,881)
Capital commitments 31. EARAIE

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting

period are as follows:

AEENHRERRNEAFAEWT

2020 2019
—E-ERF —T-NEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Property, plant and equipment M~ R KRR
— Contracted but not provided for — 2 5] 4B R ERE 23,671 59,876
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e P BHmRME

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=1t—HIFE

32.

116

Related party transactions

The Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year

32.

BB LR5

FA - REEEEREETHEEIATR
Z

2020 2019
—g-®F -T-NF
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETTT

Interest expenses HEBEF S
on lease liabilities

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group’s balance with a
related party was as follows.

- 122

RZE—EFR-_F-—NF+=A
=+—H8  AEEHEBEESNEHRD
—Fo

2020 2019
= i —TNEF
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARETTT

Chenghai Changxing EEEH

— Lease deposits included —iTAEESEERS
in deposits

— Lease liabilities —HEAE

- 328

- (662)




33. Summarised financial position of the

34.

—ToTER  FLEERBREAQAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e P BHmRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TE+_A=1+—BILEE

33. ARQRMBARREE

company
2020 2019
= —TNEF
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T

Non-current assets EREBEE
Investments in a subsidiary &M B A E 316,417 316,417
Prepayments TEFRIE - 3,213
316,417 319,630

Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H fth el kI8 8,949 —
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEULHT B A TF8 67,236 —
Cash and cash equivalents Re MREFEEY 33 —
76,218 —
Current liabilities RBAE

Accruals expenses JEETR 12,214 6,002
Amounts due to subsidiaries AN EINEIE e - 13,576
12,214 19,578
NET ASSET EEFHE 380,421 300,052

Capital and reserves BRAER#HE
Share capital &N 467 70
Reserves ] 379,954 299,982
TOTAL EQUITY R 380,421 300,052

Contingent liabilities

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and the Company
did not have any significant contingent liabilities (2019: Nil).

34. ZAREE

RARERR  AEELEEFAEX
FIREE(CE-NFE) -
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e ISR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
BE_Z_TF+_A=1t—HIFE

35. Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the 35. ZAAR X EMMBE QA FE
company
The table below lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in TR ESRALAFEXERE
the opinion of the Directors, principally affected the results for S22 S AR PR R B [ B S AR 2 2 T
the year or formed a substantial portion of the financial position DA RGBIMB AR - EERA 1R
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in HEMMBRARNFBESEART BN
the opinion of the Directors, result in particulars of excessive Tk °
length.
The Group's principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019 and AEER=ZZT_EFR_T—NF
2020 are set out below. TZA=T—ANFEFEREA RN
To
Place of Issued/ Percentage of the
incorporation/ paid-up Company's indirect Principal
Name Note registration capital ownership interest activities
EALABRERR
2% Wz RAL/ 2R BT/ ARRE BENEA IEEY
Direct Indirect
B [k
Kidztech (BVI) Limited BvI USD1 100% — Investment holding
BTEZERNES ABRAHE 137 RERR
Kidztech (China) Intelligent Technology Co., Limited Hong Kong HKD1 — 100% Investment holding
F1E (PE) BeMEARAR o 1371 RERR
Shantou Kidztech No. 1 Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. a The PRC — — 100% Investment holding
NET T E- R RERTEERAR e RERR
Shantou Kidztech No. 2 Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. b The PRC RMBY1,103,254 — 100% Investment holding
NETHLE_ SRR AT EERAR L AREE1,103.254 70 Rk
Kidztech Intelligent The PRC RMB78,000,000 — 100% Manufacturing and
FTERE HE ARE78,000,0007 sales of toys
ASERHE
Kidztech HK Hong Kong HKD500,000 — 100% Export of toys
BhatE &b 50000077 AL
Shenzhen Kidztech Internet Technalogy Co,, Ltd. The PRC RVB5,000,000 — 100% Sales of toys through
MIETERRENHERAT HE ARH5,00000070 g-commence
channels
BHENA
Shenzhen Kidztech Internet of Things Technology Co., Ltd The PRC RVB5,000,000 100% Research, development,
ME T ENE AR RERAR e AR 50000007 and sales of smart
hardware
BT LA
Kidztech Infotech c The PRC RB3,340,000 100% Dormant
BLERERK hE ARH3,340,0007 izt
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Particulars of principal subsidiaries of the
company (Continued)

Note

(a) Shantou Kidztech No. 1 Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. is a
wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the PRC with
registered capital of RMB1,000,000, which was yet to be paid up
as at 31 December 2020.

(b)  Shantou Kidztech No.2 Technology Consulting Co., Ltd. is a
domestic enterprise established in the PRC with registered
capital of RMB111,428,571. As at 31 December 2020,
RMB110,325,317 of the registered capital was yet to be paid up

(c) Kidztech Infotech is a domestic enterprise established in the PRC
with registered capital of RMB96,000,000. As at 31 December
2020, RMB12,660,000 of the registered capital was yet to be
paid up.

Approval of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 25 March
2021.

35.

36.

e ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2020

BE-_Z-_TF+_A=1+—HILFE

ARBEEMBRAFR

(%

M 5E

(a)

BT A T E—REEAAGRA
Al —RIEFEKMHINEBE
¥ #FMEALRRAR1,000000
T HEE_ZF+_A=1+—
A& RER ©

WEEmH LE—RRREAERA
AR —REFERIHANERE
FERNAEARKE 111,428,571 7T ©
RZZE_TF+=-A=+—H" A
R #110,325,317 7T A9 5% it & A 14
RER -

TLiEEBRHERE —REF B
MRELE FMERBARE
96,000,0007C ° R=ZE=ZTF+=
A=+—H ' AR# 12,660,000
RIEME AR RER o

HESRS M ®RK

GAVMBERRER_Z=_—F=A
“t+hBEESEESHEREETE -
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EEMBHBTE

Year ended 31 December
HBE+-A=+—HILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
—BoEF —IT-hF ZE)N\F —ET—+tF ZEF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTRT ARETrT ARETT ARETT AREFTT

Results ES

Revenue e 295,913 325,800 278,717 259,185 214,025
Profit before income tax TS5 Al 227 32,947 48,380 41,577 42,234 38,664
Income tax expenses FrS R (8,804) (12,935) (8,824) (6,147) (5,219)
Profit for the year FRAEA 24,143 35,445 32,753 36,087 33,445

Assets and Liabilites ZERARE

Total assets BEBRE 670,546 524,722 570,680 476,774 257244
Total liabilities BEERE (247,004) (223,825) (204,499) (139,063) (107588)
Net assets BEFRE 423,542 300,897 366,181 337711 149,656
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